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SMSC PROVIDES REAL WORLD
CONNECTIVITY™ SOLUTIONS FOR A BROAD
RANGE OF HIGH-SPEED COMMUNICATION
AND COMPUTING APPLICATIONS.
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“On a GAAP basis,’ fiscal 2002 gross profit percentage was 49.0%. See page 53 for a recencitiation of pro forma and GAAP results,

ABOUT THE COMPANY SMSC provides Real World Connectivity™ solutions for high-
speed communication and computing applications. Leveraging a broad intellectual property
portfolio, the Company thrives at the intersection of software, silicon and customized OEM
applications. Through the integration of its leading-edge digital, mixed-signal and analog
functionality and software expertise, SMSC delivers complete solutions that monitor and
manage computing systems and connect peripherals to computers and to one another.
The Company is the world’s leading provider of Advanced Input/Output (1/0) hardware
and software solutions ranging from legacy PC |/O to leading-edge system management
functionality. Through high-speed serial interfaces, including USB 2.0 and embedded
Ethernet, SMSC delivers faster and higher-bandwidth peripheral connections for a wide
range of products such as memory card readers, mass storage devices, digital cameras and
keyboards and enables innovative high-speed networking functionality for consumer elec-
tronics, set-top boxes, printers, car navigation systems, cellular base stations, and more.
SMSC, a fabless semiconductor supplier, is based in Hauppauge, NY and maintains
offices worldwide, including locations in North America, Taiwan, Japan, Europe
and China. SMSC operates engineering design centers in Phoenix, AZ, Tucson, AZ,
Hauppauge, NY and Austin, TX. More information about the Company is available on the
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World Wide Web at www.smsc.com.
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TO MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

BONNE

The semiconductor industry endured an unprecedented year-to-year decline during 2001, with industry-
wide revenues dropping 32%. A recovery was forecasted to begin in 2002, but did not occur. Overall
semiconductor revenues increased only 1% during 2002, but non-DRAM revenues (or the segment
SMSC serves) actually declined an additional 2% from the prior year. The duration of this recession has
also now stretched over multiple years, precipitating ongoing restructuring activity throughout the industry.

Despite this tough environment, | am pleased to report that SMSC stayed focused, executed crisply
and delivered strong operating results. In fiscal 2003, SMSC shipped more new products than ever
before, achieved significant market share gains and measurably enhanced its technical capabilities.

Even in the absence of any broad-based economic recovery, SMSC's product sales grew by 20%
over the prior year. Growth was achieved across all product lines through a combination of market share
gains and the successful rollout of new products serving new markets such as Universal Serial Bus
(USB) 2.0 and environmental monitoring and control. Gross profit on product sales grew significantly to
44.2%, a seven-percentage point increase compared to fiscal 2002. This reflected a product mix shift to
higher margin products and the increase of analog content into SMSC’s product lines.

Advanced Input/Output (I/0) revenues grew by 18% versus the prior year, despite flat worldwide PC
revenues. SMSC’s market share of this sector grew to more than 45%, as our expanding portfolio of
mixed-signal capabilities enabled new avenues of growth, particularly in addressing evolving PC archi-
tectures and the increasing requirements for environmental monitoring solutions. Key multi-miltion dollar
design-wins this past year included SMSC’s first Japanese notebook microcontroller and the industry’s

first embedded flash desktop 1/0 device.




SMSC’s embedded product lines, which had been hit hard by the economic downturn in fiscal 2002,
showed progress throughout fiscal 2003, largely on the strength of new product introductions in networking
and USB connectivity applications. Embedded product revenues grew sequentially in every quarter of
fiscal 2003, increased by 26% for the year overall and represented 27% of total revenues by the fourth

quarter of the fiscal year.
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Continued success in cost management and leverage to SMSC's profitability as product sales grew
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contributed to a more than $14 million improvement in pro forma operating income, from a loss of $13.3
million in fiscal 2002 to a profit of $0.8 million in fiscal 2003. Pro forma income per share from continuing
operations improved to $0.14 this past year from a loss of $0.29 last year.

On a GAAP basis, operating income was $1.1 million in fiscal 2003 and $6.4 million in fiscal 2002.
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations was ($0.42) in fiscal 2003, compared to $0.44 in fiscal
2002. Fiscal 2003 results were negatively affected by a $16.3 million investment impairment charge
associated with two minority equity investments held since 1995 and 1997. Fiscal 2002 results were
favorably affected by a $29.6 million special intellectual property payment. A comparison of GAAP and
pro forma results with reconciling data is shown on page 53 of this annual report.

SMSC’s balance sheet remains extremely strong. At the end of the fiscal year, cash and short-term
investments totaled nearly $113 million, the Company had no bank debt and its current assets were
nearly seven times its current liabilities.

In addition to producing solid financial results in a difficult environment, SMSC made important strides
in positioning itself for future growth by expanding its technical capabilities to address broader markets,
as well as through the introduction of new products, many of which are outside the traditional PC market.

In June of 2002, the Company significantly enhanced its anafog and mixed-signal capabilities by com-
pleting the acquisition of Gain Technology Corporation, now known as the SMSC Analog Technology
Center (ATC). This acquisition added 35 highly talented and prolific analog engineers and designers to

our team, not only expanding our capabilities in existing product lines, but also providing opportunities
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to expand into entirely new markets. ATC’s capabilities address a number of areas including USB 2.0,
PCI-Express and wireless communications.

In fiscal 20083, progress in new product applications included the ramping of new USB 2.0 solutions,
including controllers to support flash media cards, portable storage devices and external PC drives. The
Company also introduced a new USB 2.0 bus-powered PHY, enabling the design of advanced high-

speed peripherals. In addition, SMSC recently entered an additional segment of the USB market with the

introduction of a USB 2.0 hub device with breakthrough performance that will allow the design of hubs
in many power-sensitive port expansion applications. Additional products are under development to
address the evolving needs of the USB 2.0 market, which is expected to experience extremely strong
growth over the next several years.

In the networking area, SMSC’s 10/100 Ethernet solutions have achieved the leading market share
position for embedded non-PCl applications. Looking ahead, our design teams are working on additional
products to address new applications that will arise as the networking market evoives from the traditional
office and telecommunications infrastructure to more consumer-oriented applications.

On a final note, | would like to recognize with gratitude the service and dedication of James R. Berrett
and James J. Boyle to SMSC. Messrs. Berrett and Boyle will be retiring as directors of the Company this
summer after serving for seven and three years, respectively. We thank them both for their insight,
dedication and nurnerous contributions over the years and wish them health, happiness and success in
all of their future endeavors.

As we enter fiscal 2004, SMSC'’s focus on growth opportunities is supported by a well-rounded set of
technical capabilities, a global infrastructure and a world class list of customers. With the building blocks
of a solid future in place, we lock forward to continued momentum and profitable growth in the coming
years. I'd like to thank our employees for their ongoing commitment to the Company's success and our

shareholders for their continued support.

Sincerely,

Steven J. Bilodeau
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

April 11, 2003
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SMSC SHIPPED MORE NIW PRODUCTS
THAN EVER BEFORE, ACHIEVED
SIGNIFICANT MARKET SHARE GAINS
AND MEASURABLY ENHANCED ITS o
TRICHNICAL CAPABILITIES.




DURING FISCAL 2003, SMSC INTRODUCED
ITS LINE OF USB 2.0 PRODUCTS )
DESIGNED TO ADDRESS THE NEED FOR

HIGH-PERFORMANCE, LOW-POWER
USB sYSTEMS.

USB Flash Drive
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PRODUCT DIVERSIFICATION Through a proven ability to understand customers’ needs and respond
with innovative solutions solving critical connectivity, space and cost requirements, SMSC has evolved
to become a leading provider of semiconductor and software design functionality both inside and out of the
PC. Underpinning a success in product diversification, the Company has been first to market with many
products that enable high-speed communications for a wide range of applications in both business and
consumer markets.

During fiscal 2003, SMSC introduced its line of USB 2.0 products designed to address the need for
high-performance, low-power USB systems. Its USB device controllers address many consumer markets
including mass storage for portable devices small enough to hang on a key chain, card readers to support
a wide range of flash media cards such as those used in digital cameras, and controllers for external disk
drives such as CD-ROM, CD-R, CD-R/W, DVD and DVD-RAM. In addition, its USB 2.0 physical layer
(PHY) products include the GT3100 IP core and the GT3200 discrete device, providing best-in-class
power consumption for systems using only the power provided by the USB cable.

More recently, SMSC entered a new segment of the USB 2.0 market with the introduction of its first
USB 2.0 hub device, enabling the design of bus-powered, standalone hubs, LCD monitor hubs, docking
station hubs, USB 2.0 laptop port replicators, bus-powered hub/flash drive/card reader combinations,
and other power sensitive applications for USB 2.0 port expansion. The market opportunity for this seg-
ment alone is expected to exceed 19 miilion units by 2007 and grow at an estimated compound annual
rate of 122%, according to recent statistics published by In-Stat/MDR.

Going forward, the Company will also leverage its expertise in the existing USB 1.1 protocol to support
applications in growth areas such as cradles for personal digital assistants and tablet PCs and external
PC disk drives. Further, continued investments in future USB 2.0 hub, flash and PHY devices, focusing
on both hardware and software customization, will strengthen the Company’s baseline success in providing
USB 2.0 solutions for a total addressable market, according to an In-Stat/MDR industry report, of one

billion installed units today.
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FEATURE RICH SOLUTIONS SMSC's expertise in the development of leading-edge digital, mixed-
signal and analog functionality is the core that drives the Company’s strategy of integrating higher value-
added features into evolving computing and communication architectures. SMSC maintains the world’s
leading market share in providing Advanced Input/Qutput (I/O) hardware and software solutions for
desktop and notebook PC applications ranging from legacy /O to system management functionality.

Due in large part to market share gains, SMSC’s Advanced I/O product revenues grew by 18% in fiscal
20083, far exceeding the performance of the broader PC market, according to industry statistics. This past
year, SMSC introduced many new feature-rich solutions for this market, which have positioned the
Company well to further diversify its offering into new markets outside of the PC as well. The Company's
progress is particularly evident in a significant increase in global share of Advanced 1/0 devices in calendar
year 2002, bringing its total share to more than 45%.

SMSC introduced several new products in fiscal 2003 for the fast-growing notebook computer market,
inciuding a solution that combines Advanced I/O functionality with a high-performance microcontroller
and shared flash interface. They enable the design of full-featured port replication and docking solutions
for legacy-free notebook PCs through a hot-switchable external interface, and other companion controllers
for similar applications. Other ongoing product developments and enhancements leveraging SMSC'’s
analog, mixed-signal, embedded flash and software/BIOS capabilities include products for environmental
monitoring and control, keyboard controllers and more. Applications for these solutions reach beyond
the traditional PC domain and offer growth opportunities to SMSC in a wide range of markets such as
servers, personal digital assistants, smart displays and other hybrid communication devices.

Going forward, as architectures continue to evolve, converge, process more data and become central
hubs of information, they will require increasingly sophisticated solutions to monitor and direct system
functionality, such as those addressing bandwidth and data transfer performance like PCI-Express.
SMSC, a key network developer for the PCI-Express architecture, will play an important role in the
evolution of this flexible, scalable next-generation interface. As a result of the technologica! investments
the Company is making today, SMSC is well positioned to deliver solutions customized to a wide range

of platforms in a highly diverse marketplace.
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ADDRESSING NETWORKING TREND TOWARD KIGH-VOLUME APPLICATIONS SMSC is the

leading supplier of products for the embedded (non-PCI) Ethernet market. Traditionally, Ethernet solutions

have catered to telecommunications and the networked office. Today the trend is quickly moving to non-
traditional networked applications as a result of Ethernet’s low-cost, high-performance, ubiquitous features.
As a result, new opportunities are emerging for SMSC to address networking needs for a wide range of
products in markets previously served by non-Ethernet, proprietary solutions. In addition, as these new
applications add more connectivity options such as USB 2.0, SMSC will be well positioned to add more
value and reduce customer costs as a result of its rich portfolio of connectivity technologies and strong
mixed-signal expertise.

In particular, SMSC’s LAN91C111 single-chip MAC/PHY non-PCl Ethernet controller is being favorably
received with numerous design wins and strong sales momentum as customer production ramps accelerate.
The LAN91C111 allows OEMs to meet the evolving needs of Ethernet networks, particularly as the demand
for network speed continues to increase for multimedia and World Wide Web applications. Looking ahead,
the Company plans to develop an even larger family of products to address emerging Ethernet applications
requiring even higher performance and greater functionality.

Leveraging a solid traditional customer base, which SMSC has serviced well through strong channel
partnerships, the Gompany is now well positioned to expand its customer base to address larger-scale
OEM customers as the market for Ethernet products migrates to new high-volume products.

SMSC also offers a line of ARCNET solutions which are commonly used in niche applications requiring
secure, real-time, deterministic response, such as car navigation systems, cellular base stations and
networked medical equipment. This protocol, particularly pervasive in Japan and Europe, is expected to

remain a strong and profitable business for SMSC in the coming years.
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SMSC HAS
ITS BUSINESSES "
DYNAMIC MARTT

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES IN DYRNAMIC MARKETS SMSC is approaching the future with a
focused strategy and optimistic long-term outlogk. It has aligned its businesses with dynamic markets
and the Company should have significant earnings leverage over the long-term from its growth plans.

Advanced /O

e Integration of higher-value functionality in core 1/0 devices

o Growth of mixed-signal and analog content

o Proliferation of customized, stand alone microcontrolier solutions
e Expansion of environmental monitoring solutions

USBE Connectivity

o Development of USB device controllers addressing portable mass storage devices, card readers
supporting flash media cards and external PC disk drives

o Growth of USB 2.0 PHY products addressing networking, computing, consumer electronics and
embedded system applications

e Expansion of USB 2.0 hub devices enabling the design of a wide range of bus-powered, stand alone
hubs and other power sensitive applications for USB 2.0 port expansion

Networking

o Continued growth of networking designs for machine-to-machine applications such as POS terminals
and factory/building automation

o Solutions addressing a wide range of home media applications, including set-top boxes, personal
video recorders and high definition television

o Continued growth of ARCNET solutions for secure, deterministic applications such as cellular base
stations and car navigation systems

Looking ahead, the investments SMSC is making in its core businesses will broaden its product lines,
build and deepen customer relationships and secure its competitive advantages as the Company seeks
to establish and secure a leadership position in all the market niches it serves.

12




INANGUAL B WY

Selected Financial Data 14

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations 16
Consolidated Statements of Operations 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets 29
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 30
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 31
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 32
Reports of Independent Accountants 51

Pro Forma and GAAP Consolidated Statements of

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (Unaudited) 53

Shareholder Information 54

13




Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries

SELECTED FHNAN@HAL DATA
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended February 28 or 29, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Operating Results
’ Product sales $154,244 $128,528 $162,008 $151,371 $154,352
_ Intellectual property revenues 1,273 30,770 1,420 1,876 1,474
Total sales and revenues 156,517 159,298 163,428 153,247 155,826
Gross profit 89,424 78,034 66,768 59,363 55,980
Research and development 31,166 31,178 32,580 24,365 17,437
Seliing, general and
administrative 36,268 32,744 35,369 32,993 30,550
Amortization of intangible assets 1,167 — —_ — —
Restructuring costs (247) 7,734 — — —
Operating income (loss) 1,070 6,378 (1,181) 2,005 6,439
Other income (expense) {14,446) 4,308 34,293 3,415 2,221
Income (loss) from continuing
operations $ (6,971) $ 7475 $ 22,164 $ 3,442 $ 6,003
Net loss from discontinued
operations {500) (1,564) — — (5,255)

Gain (loss) on sales of
discontinued operations,
net of taxes - — 4,765 4,151 (13,283)

Cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle,
net of taxes — — — (2,924) —

Net income (loss) $ (7,471) $ 5911 $ 26,929 $ 4,669 $ (12,545)
Diluted net income
{loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing
operations $ (042 || $ 044 $ 129 $ 022 $ 038
Net income (loss) (C.45) 0.35 1.57 0.29 0.79)

Diluted weighted average
cemmoen shares outstanding 16,538 16,900 17,165 15,915 15,824

The operating results presented above reflect:

o The Companys acquisition of Gain Technology Corporation in fiscal 2003, as more fully described in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
in this report.

© $16.3 million of investment impairment charges recorded in fiscal 2003, as more fully discussed in Note 9.

© The receipt of a $29.6 million special intellectual property payment in fiscal 2002, as more fully described in Note 7.

© $9.0 million of business restructuring charges recorded in fiscal 2002, as more fully described in Note 6.
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Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries

SELECTED FINANGIAL BATA
(In thousands, except per share data)

As of February 28 or 29, and for the years then ended 2003 N 2002 2001 2000 1999
Balance Sheet and Cther Data
Cash and short-term
investments $112,897 $126,660 $109,174 $ 75,405 $ 70,071
Working capital 145,839 154,981 146,382 111,016 98,342
Capital expenditures 5,695 4,488 14,600 10,503 10,847
Depreciation and amortization 10,752 11,614 11,792 9,988 10,544
Total assets 247,249 236,063 239,098 258,508 198,657
Long-term obligations 7,379 6,973 5,812 22,151 7,816
Shareholders’ equity 204,012 193,453 194,315 201,792 158,434
Book value per common share 1247 || 12.14 12.08 12.80 10.21

This selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
related notes, and the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” contained in this report.
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The following discussion should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto contained
in this report.

Portions of this report may contain forward-
looking statements about expected future events
and financial and operating results that involve
risks and uncertainties. These include the timely
development and market acceptance of new
products; the impact of competitive products and
pricing; the effect of changing economic condi-
tions in domestic and international markets;
changes in customer order patterns, including
loss of key customers, order cancellations or
reduced bookings; and excess or obsolete inven-
tory and variations in inventory valuation, among
others. Words such as “believe,” “expect,” “antic-
ipate” and similar expressions identify forward-
locking statements. Such statements are qualified
in their entirety by the inherent risks and uncer-
tainties surrounding future expectations and may
not reflect the potential impact of any future
acquisitions, mergers or divestitures.

Standard Microsystems Corporation (the
Company or SMSC) competes in the semiconduc-
tor industry, which has historically been charac-
terized by intense competition, rapid technological
change, cyclical market patterns, price erosion
and periods of mismatched supply and demand.
In addition, sales of many of the Company's prod-
ucts depend largely on sales of personal computers
and peripheral devices, and reductions in the rate
of growth of the PC and embedded markets
could adversely affect its operating results. SMSC
conducts business outside the United States and
is subject to tariff and import regulations and cur-
rency fluctuations, which may have an effect on its
business. All forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date hereof and are based upon the
information available to SMSC at this time. Such
information is subject to change, and the
Company will not necessarily inform investors of
such changes, except as required by law. These
and other risks and uncertainties, including
potential liability resuiting from pending or future
litigation, are detailed from time to time in the
Company’s reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). Investors are

Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANGIAL
CONDRITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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advised to read the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q filed
with the SEC, particularly those sections entitled
Other Factors That May Affect Future Operating
Resuits, for a more complete discussion of these
and other risks and uncertainties.

OVERVIEW

Description of Business

SMSC is a designer and worldwide supplier of
advanced digital, mixed-signal and analog semi-
conductor solutions for a broad range of commu-
nications and computing applications in the areas
of Advanced Input/Qutput (I/O), USB connectivity,
networking and embedded control systems. The
Company is a fabless semiconductor supplier
whose products are manufactured by world-class
third-party semiconductor foundries and assem-
blers. To ensure the highest quality, the Company
conducts a significant portion of its final testing
requirements in the Company’s own state-of-the-
art testing operation.

The Company is prominent as the world’s
leading supplier of Advanced 1/0O integrated circuits
for desktop and mobile personal computers.
Advanced 1/0 circuits contain a variety of individual
functions ranging from legacy PC (/O to leading
edge system management, including flash memory,
infrared communications support, a real-time
clock, and power management.

The Company serves the networking and con-
nectivity markets with its families of integrated
Ethernet and USB 2.0 products, along with other
products, which provide solutions for the needs
of network printers, set-top boxes, home gate-
way products, automobile navigation systems,
cellular base stations, USB peripherals and a
variety of other machine-to-machine communica-
tions applications.

The Company’s headquarters are located in
Hauppauge, New York, and SMSC operates
design and validation centers in New York, Austin,
Texas, Tucson, Arizona and Phoenix, Arizona, and
has sales offices in the United States, Europe,
Taiwan and China. The Company conducts most
of its business in the Japanese market through its
majority-owned subsidiary, SMSC Japan.




Customers and Product Life Cycles

SMSC sells its products to a worldwide cus-
tomer base, which includes most of the world’s
leading personal computer and personal computer
motherboard manufacturers. The Company’s
Advanced /O circuits reside on the motherboards
of personal computer products sold by Dell,
Fujitsu, Gateway, Hewlett-Packard/Compagq, IBM,
intel, NEC, Sony, Toshiba and most other leading
manufacturers. The Company also sells its prod-
ucts through electronics distributors, who provide
value-added access to a broad base of smaller
personal computer suppliers, as well as to many
customers who use the Company’s products in
diverse networking, connectivity and embedded
systems applications.

While demand for the Company’s products is
primarily driven by the worldwide demand for
personal computers, peripheral devices, and
embedded systems applications sold by U.S.-
based suppliers, a significant portion of the
Company’s products are sold to manufacturing
subcontractors of those U.S.-based suppliers,
located in Asia and the Pacific Rim. The majority
of the world’s personal computer, personal com-
puter motherboard and other high technology
manufacturing activity occurs in that region.

The evaluation, testing and design-in of the
Company’s products by customers typically takes
several months or more, with an additional three
to nine months or more before a customer typically
commences volume production of equipment
incorporating the preducts. In light of the eco-
nomic slowdown in the technology sector over
the past several years, it may now take signifi-
cantly longer than three to nine months before
customers commence volume production of
equipment incorporating the Company’s prod-
ucts. Due to these dynamics, the Company
can experience significant delays between incur-
ring expenses for research and development,
marketing, selling, administrative efforts, and
investments in inventory, and the corresponding
generation of sales and revenue, if any. As is typ-
ical in the semiconductor industry, the Company’s
rate of new orders can vary significantly from
month to month. If anticipated sales and revenues
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in any quarter do not occur as expected, expenses
and inventory levels could be disproportionately
high, and the Company’s results of operations for
that guarter, and potentially for future quarters,
could be adversely impacted.

From time to time, several key customers can
account for a significant portion of the Company's
sales and revenues. During fiscal 2003, 2002 and
2001, the Company had customers whose pur-
chases represented greater than 10% of the
Company’s sales and revenues in those fiscal
years. In fiscal 2003, three customers accounted
for 19.6%, 14.3% and 12.1%, respectively, of the
Company’s sales and revenues. In fiscal 2002,
two customers accounted for 29.0% and 15.2%,
respectively, of the Company’s sales and rev-
enues. In fiscal 2001, one customer accounted
for 11.2% of the Company'’s sales and revenues.
No other customer represented more than 10% of
the Company’s sales and revenues in those fiscal
years. The Company expects that its key cus-
tomers will continue to account for a significant
portion of its sales and revenues in fiscal 2004
and for the foreseeable future.

Gross Profit
The Company'’s gross profit has been impacted
in the past, and may continue to be impacted in
the future, by various factors, including:
o Product mix
o Position of products in their respective life cycles
o Competitive pricing strategies
o Manufacturing efficiencies and inefficiencies
o Semiconductor foundry manufacturing capacity
Advanced 1I/0 products typically have short
production life cycles, are sold in high-volume,
and generally produce lower gross margins than
products for networking and embedded systems
applications, which typically have longer produc-
tion life cycles and are shipped in lower unit
volumes. In addition, newly introduced products
generally command higher average selling prices
and gross margins, both of which typically decline
over product life cycles, due to competitive pres-
sures and other factors. In order to offset declines
in average selling prices, the Company continually
works to add additional functionality and value to



Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCGIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

its products, and to reduce the costs of its prod-
ucts, through product and manufacturing design
changes, yield improvements, manufacturing
efficiencies and lower costs negotiated with sub-
contract manufacturers.

Business Acquisition

in June 2002, the Company acquired all of the
outstanding common stock of Gain Technology
Corporation (Gain), a developer and supplier of
high-speed, high-performance analog and mixed-
signal communications integrated circuits and
proprietary intellectual property cores, based in
Tucson, Arizona. Gain now operates as SMSC
Analog Technology Center, Inc., (ATC). Total initial
consideration paid for the acquisition of ATC was
approximately $36.1 million, consisting of approx-
imately 742,000 shares of SMSC common stock
valued at $17.9 million, $16.6 million of cash,
and $1.6 million of direct acquisition costs.
Through this acquisition, the Company signifi-
cantly enhanced its analog and mixed-signal
capabilities, by adding 35 highly skilled engineers
and designers, acquiring several new products, .
and expanding its intellectual property portfolio.

The Company's new GT3200 device, acquired
through the ATC acquisition, is the first in a fam-
ily of high-performance analog physical layer
(PHY) and high-speed serial data communication
devices specifically designed for the new USB 2.0
connectivity standard. it is fully certified by the
USB Implementers Forum and complements the
Company’s existing family of USB 2.0 products.

Leveraging ATC’s assets and expertise, the
Company is pursuing additional product oppor-
tunities in high-speed, high-performance USB
connectivity and several new markets.

Business Restructuring

in November 2001, the Company’s Board of
Directors approved management'’s plan to exit the
PC chipset business, redirect the Company’s
resources, and increase its focus on leveraging its
core technologies toward higher growth, higher
margin businesses. As a result, the Company dis-
continued further investments in PC chipset
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development activities. This restructuring was
announced on December 3, 2001.

The decision to exit this business was based
upon an assessment of the PC chipset market-
place, and management’s conclusions that the
opportunities for profitability in this marketplace
had declined, and the costs of entry had increased,
to a point where further investments in PC chipset
technology were not justified. In addition to the
changing market prospects for PC chipset prod-
ucts, the current, unprecedented semiconductor
market downturn had prevented the Company
from producing profits white continuing its signifi-
cant investment in PC chipset products.

As a result of this restructuring, the Company
recorded charges of $9.0 million in fiscal 2002, of
which $7.7 million was classified within operating
expenses and $1.3 million was classified within
cost of goods sold on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. The restructuring-related charges
included $5.3 million for impairments in asset val-
ues, $1.3 million for excess and obsolete inventory,
$1.9 million for long-term, non-cancelable lease
obligations, $0.3 million for a workforce reduction
of 55 people, and $0.2 million in other costs. In
fiscal 2003, the Company reduced these charges
by $0.2 million, after reassessing its remaining
obligations under this restructuring plan.

The Company completed its restructuring
program during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.
Substantially all of the $0.3 million in cash pay-
ments related to the workforce reduction were
made in that period. Payments related to the
non-cancelable lease obligations will be paid over
their respective terms, through August 2008.
Substantially all of the remaining restructuring
costs were non-cash.

By virtue of this restructuring, the Company
redeployed certain resources previously devoted
to PC chipset marketing and development pro-
grams back to its core technologies in high-speed
communications and computing applications.
The restructuring had minimal impact on product
sales, as the Company had yet to achieve signifi-
cant product sales of PC chipset products.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales and Revenues

The Company’s sales and revenues for fiscal
2003 were $155.5 million, including $154.2 million
of product sales and $1.3 million of intellectual
property revenues, compared to fiscal 2002 sales
and revenues of $159.3 million, which included
$128.5 million of product sales and $30.8 million
of intellectual property revenues. Fiscal 2001
sales and revenues were $163.4 million, including
$162.0 million in product sales and $1.4 million in
intellectual property revenues.

Product sales increased 20% in fiscal 2003,
compared to fiscal 2002, outpacing the nominal
overall growth in worldwide semiconductor rev-
enues in calendar 2002 (quoted as less than 2% by
independent market research sources), primarily
on the strength of new design-wins with several
key customers achieved during fiscal 2002 and
fiscal 2003. The Company believes that it increased
its Advanced I/O market share during fiscal 2003
on the strength of these key design-wins. In addi-
tion, following a prolonged slump dating back to
the early part of fiscal 2002, sales of the Company’s
networking and USB connectivity products
increased in fiscal 2003, compared to fiscal 2002,
reflecting contributions from several new prod-
ucts in each of these product lines.

The decline in product sales in fiscal 2002, o
$128.5 million, as compared to $162.0 million in
fiscal 2001, resulted primarily from a decrease in
unit volumes, reflecting the unfavorable economic
conditions in the semiconductor industry. Many of
the Company’s customers faced slowing demand
for their products and needed to work down sig-
nificant inventory balances throughout fiscal 2002.
Despite this ongoing economic slowdown in the
technology sector, the Company’s 21% decline in
product sales in fiscal 2002 was lower than the
30%-35% calendar 2001 revenue decline expe-
rienced by the overall semiconductor industry,
as estimated by independent market research
sources.

intellectual property revenues in fiscal 2002
included a $29.6 million payment received from
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Intel Corporation, further details regarding which
appear within the section of this discussion titled
Technology and Patent License Agreements with
Intel Corporation.

Sales and revenues from customers outside
of North America accounted for 91% of the
Company's sales and revenues in fiscal 2003,
compared to 73% in fiscal 2002 and 77% in fiscal
2001. The fiscal 2002 comparison was impacted
by the $29.6 million intellectual property payment
received from Intel Corporation in that period,
without which 90% of the Company’s fiscal 2002
sales and revenues were from customers outside
of North America. This trend reflects an increasing
portion of the world’s high technology manufac-
turing activity occurring in Asia. The Company
expects that international shipments, particularly
to the Asia and Pacific Rim region, will continue
to represent a significant portion of its sales and
revenues for the foreseeable future.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for fiscal 2003 was $69.4 million, or
44.6% of sales and revenues, compared to $78.0
million, or 48.0% of sales and revenues reported
for fiscal 2002. Gross profit in fiscal 2001 was $66.8
million, or 40.9% of sales and revenues. Excluding
the impact of the $29.6 million intellectual prop-
erty payment received from Intel Corporation and
$1.3 million of inventory charges associated with
the Company’s fiscal 2002 restructuring, the gross
profit percentage in fiscal 2002 would have been
38.3% of sales and revenues.

The improvement in gross profit in fiscal 2003,
to 44.6% of sales and revenues, as compared to
38.3% of sales and revenues {(as adjusted per the
preceding paragraph) achieved in fiscal 2002,
reflects the combination of lower product costs,
new product introductions, an increase in unit
production, and lower inventory obsolescence
charges, unrelated to the November 2001 restruc-
turing, recorded in fiscal 2003 as compared to
fiscal 2002.

The decrease in gross profit percentage in
fiscal 2002, to 38.3% of sales and revenues, as
adjusted, compared to 40.9% in fiscal 2001,
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reflects a decrease in unit shipments, which
resulted in lower fixed overhead absorption. The
fiscal 2002 gross profit percentage was also
adversely impacted by a product mix shift away
from embedded systems, networking, and con-
nectivity products, which traditionally contribute
higher gross margins than Advanced I/O products.

Research and Development Expenses

The Company’s research and development
(R&D) consists of circuit design, development and
validation, product engineering, software develop-
ment and related support activities. The Company’s
ongoing commitment to R&D is essential to main-
taining product leadership in existing product lines
and to providing innovative new product offerings,
which, in turn, drive the Company’s opportunities
for future growth.

R&D expenses were $31.2 million in both fiscal
2003 and fiscal 2002, and $32.6 million in fiscal
2001. Fiscal 2003 R&D expenditures include
increased expenses driven by the June 2002
acquisition of ATC, and reduced expenditures for
PC chipset development activities resulting from
the Company’s November 2001 restructuring.

Fiscal 2002 R&D expenses decreased to $31.2
million, compared to $32.6 million in fiscal 2001.
This decrease reflects the impact of the Company’s
November 2001 business restructuring, which, at
the time, reduced annual R&D expenses by
approximately $5.0 million, including $2.9 million
in compensation and benefit costs. These cost
reductions impacted R&D expenses incurred in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
were $36.3 million, or approximatety 23% of sales
and revenues, in fiscal 2003, compared to $32.7
million, or approximately 21% of sales and rev-
enues, in fiscal 2002. Fiscal 2001 selling, general
and administrative expenses were $35.4 million,
or approximately 22% of sales and revenues.
Contributing to the increase in fiscal 2003, as
compared to fiscal 2002, were higher variable

CORNDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
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selling expenses associated with increased prod-
uct sales in fiscal 2003, administrative costs
associated with the operation of ATC, and addi-
tional staff added to expand the Company's sales
and marketing capabilities. This was partially off-
set by the impact of the Company’s November
2001 business restructuring, which, at the time,
reduced annual selling, general and administrative
expenses by approximately $0.8 million, beginning
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

The decline in selling, general and administrative
expenses in fiscal 2002, to $32.7 million, com-
pared to $35.4 million in fiscal 2001, resulted from
lower variable selling expenses associated with
reduced product sales in fiscal 2002, as well as
the impact of the Company’s November 2001
business restructuring. Cost containment efforts
in travel expenses and other administrative costs,
driven by an economic slowdown and other
events, also contributed to the decline in fiscal
2002. Partially offsetting these lower costs in fis-
cal 2002 were a $0.3 million litigation settlement
and $0.7 million of non-recurring professional
fees incurred during fiscal 2002.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

The $1.2 million of amortization of intangible
assets recorded in fiscal 20083 represents amorti-
zation of intangible assets associated with the
acquisition of Gain Technology Corporation in
June 2002.

Impairment of Investments

During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the
Company recorded non-cash charges totaling
$16.3 million for declines in value, considered to
be other than temporary, of its equity investments
in SMC Networks, Inc. and Chartered Semi-
conductor Manufacturing Ltd. (Chartered).

The Company’s investment in SMC Networks,
Inc. is a residual minority equity interest in a non-
public company sold by SMSC in 1997. Based
upon a valuation analysis performed by the
Company with the assistance of a third party
during the third quarter of fiscal 2003, this
investment, which carried an original cost of $8.5
million, was fully written off.




During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the
Company recorded a $7.8 million charge for a
decline in value, considered to be other than tem-
porary, of its equity investment in Chartered, based
upon a sustained reduction in Chartered’s stock
price performance, reducing the cost basis of its
remaining investment to $2.9 million.

Foliowing these charges, the remaining invest-
ment in Chartered stock represents the only
material investment in equity securities of other
companies on the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

As of February 28, 2003, the Company held
approximately 444,000 of its original 828,000
Chartered American Depository Shares, which are
reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at
$1.8 million, based upon their closing price on the
Nasdaqg Stock Market on that date. This further
decline in value, as compared to the investment’s
cost basis as adjusted in the third quarter of fiscal
20083, is reported as a component of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet. If Chartered’s stock
continues to trade below the Company’s adjusted
cost basis, further write-downs of this investment
in the future are possible.

During fiscal 2002, the Company recorded
charges totaling $0.7 million to write-down two
cost-basis investments in privately held compa-
nies. Management concluded that these invest-
ments had experienced impairments in value
considered to be other than temporary. Both
investments now carry no net book value.

Other Income and Expense

The decline in interest income, from $5.5 million
in fiscal 2001 to $3.5 million in fiscal 2002, and
then to $2.1 million in fiscal 2003, reflects a decline
in interest rates on short-term investments over
these periods.

The Company’s QOther income (expense), net,
was nominal in fiscal 2003. Other income
(expense), net, totaled $1.7 million in fiscal 2002,
including gains of $0.6 million realized from the
sales of two underutilized facilities and gains of
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$1.1 million realized on sales of a portion of an
equity investment.

In fiscal 2001, the Company realized significant
gains on the sales of portions of its investment in
Chartered, as well as proceeds from sales of call
options covering a portion of its Chartered stock
holdings. During fiscal 2001, the gains totaled
$24.2 million, while proceeds from the sales of
call options were $2.2 million. The Company also
realized gains of $2.5 million on other equity
investment sales in fiscal 2001. No sales of
Chartered stock, or related call options, were exe-
cuted in either fiscal 2003 or fiscal 2002.

Income Taxes

Generally, the Company'’s income tax rate is a
function of the federal, state and foreign statutory
tax rates, the impact of certain permanent differ-
ences between the book and tax treatment of
certain expenses, and the impact of tax-exempt
income and various tax credits.

The Company’s effective income tax benefit
rate for fiscal 2003 was approximately 48%. By
comparison, the effective income tax rate was
approximately 30% in fiscal 2002 and 33% in fis-
cal 2001. Compared to fiscal 2002, the fiscal
2003 income tax benefit rate includes the impact
of higher income tax credits and the impact of tax
benefits associated with qualified export sales,
partially offset by lower tax-exempt income. The
30% effective income tax rate in fiscal 2002, lower
than the 33% rate reported in fiscal 2001, prima-
rily reflects an increased impact of tax-exempt
income in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001.

Discontinued Operations

The Company has been involved in several
legal actions relating to past divestitures of divi-
sions and business units. These divestitures were
accounted for as discontinued operations, and
accordingly, costs associated with these actions
are reported as a Loss from discontinued opera-
tions on the Consolidated Statements of Oper-
ations. These costs totaled $0.8 million, before
applicable income tax benefits of $0.3 miliion, in
fiscal 2003, and $2.5 million, before applicable
income tax benefits of $0.9 million, in fiscal 2002.
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In March 1999, the Company’s Board of
Directors approved a plan for the Company to
divest its Foundry Business Unit (FBU). This
divestiture was completed on June 1, 1899, with
the Company selling the assets of the FBU to
privately held inertia Optical Technology Appli-
cations, Inc. (I0TA) of Newark, New Jersey, in
exchange for 38% of IOTA’'s outstanding common
stock. The combined businesses then began
operating as Standard MEMS, Inc. (SMI). During
fiscal 2001, the Company sold the majority of its
ownership interest in SMI, reducing its ownership
interest in SMI below 5% and realizing an after-
tax gain of $4.8 million.

Technology and Patent License Agreements

with Intel Corporafion

in 1987, the Company and Intel Corporation (Intel)
entered into an agreement providing for, among
other things, a broad, worldwide, non-exclusive
patent cross-license between the two companies,
covering manufacturing processes and products,
thereby providing each company access to the
other’s current and future patent portfolios.

In September 1999, the two companies
announced a technology exchange agreement
{the Agreement) that would allow SMSC to accel-
erate its then ongoing development of Intel com-
patible chipset products. Chipset products are
integrated circuits that communicate with the
microprocessor (CPU) and assist in controlling
the flow of information within a personal com-
puter or similar application. The Agreement pro-
vided, among other things, for intel to transfer
certain intellectual property related to Intel chipset
architectures to SMSC, and continues to provide
SMSC the opportunity to supply Intel chipset
components along with its own chipset solutions.
The Agreement also limited SMSC’s rights
regarding Northbridges and Intel Architecture
Microprocessors under the 1987 agreement.

The Agreement included provisions for its ter-
mination under certain circumstances. Under one
such provision, beginning in the third year of the
Agreement and annually thereafter, SMSC could
elect to terminate the Agreement should SMSC
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not achieve certain minimum chipset revenue
amounts set forth in the Agreement, unless Intel
paid SMSC an amount equal to the shortfall
between the minimum revenue amount and
the actual revenue for that period. Upon the
Agreement terminating under this provision, the
limitations imposed by the Agreement on
the Northbridge rights under the 1987 agreement
would terminate immediately, and the limitations
imposed by the Agreement on the microproc-
essor rights under the 1987 agreement would
terminate twelve months later. Should Intel elect
to make the revenue amount shortfall payment,
the provisions of the Agreement would remain in
force for the subsequent twelve-month period, for
which another minimum revenue amount would
be applicable, and at the end of which a similar
termination event would arise. Minimum chipset
revenue amounts were $30 million, $45 million,
and $60 million for the twelve months ending
September 21, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respec-
tively, increasing by 10% for each succeeding
twelve-month period following 2003, until expira-
tion of the Agreement in July 2007.

In September 2001, pursuant to the provisions
described in the preceding paragraph, SMSC
notified Intel of a chipset revenue shortfall of
approximately $29.6 million for the twelve months
ended September 21, 2001. In November 2001,
the Company received a $29.6 million payment
from Intel, which is reported as intellectual prop-
erty revenue on the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Operations for fiscal 2002.

In September 2002, SMSC nctified Intel of a
chipset revenue shortfall of approximately $44.9
million for the 2002 twelve-month period. intel
did not make a payment to SMSC of that short-
fall within the time frame specified within the
Agreement, and SMSC gave Intel notice of termi-
nation of the Agreement in accordance with the
terms thereof. The Company and intel have
commenced discussions regarding their various
corporate and intellectual property relationships,
including under the Agreement. However, there
can be no assurance as to the outcome of those
discussions.




LIQUIDITY AND CARITAL RESOURCES

The Company currently finances its operations
through a combination of existing resources and
cash generated by operations.

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments decreased to $112.9 mil-
lion as of February 28, 2003, compared to $126.7
million at February 28, 2002. This decrease
reflects, among other things, $15.7 million of cash
used for the acquisition of ATC, and $10.4 million
used for purchases of treasury stock. As of
February 28, 2003, the Company had $145.6 mil-
lion of working capital, and a current ratio of 6.9
to 1, compared to $155.0 million and 7.5 to 1,
respectively, at February 28, 2002. The Company
had no bank debt at February 28, 2003 or
February 28, 2002.

Operating activities generated $14.9 million of
cash in fiscal 2003. Investing activities consumed
$15.3 million of cash for the same period, includ-
ing the $15.7 million used in the acquisition of
ATC and $5.7 million used for capital expendi-
tures, partially offset by $5.9 million for maturities,
net of purchases, of short-term investments.
Financing activities consumed $7.8 million of cash
during fiscal 2003, including the $10.4 million for
purchases of treasury stock and $2.6 million for
payments of obligations under capital leases and
notes payable, partially offset by $5.2 million gen-
erated from the issuance of common stock
through exercises of stock options.

The Company continues to actively manage its
inventories. Despite the increase in product sales
in fiscal 2003, compared to fiscal 2002, the
Company’s inventories at February 28, 2003
remained at $17.6 million, consistent with February
28, 2002. The Company’s inventories typically
increase during the first half of its fiscal year in
anticipation of shipment requirements during the
second half of the year.

Accounts receivable increased from $21.8 mil-
lion at February 28, 2002 to $22.7 million at
February 28, 2003, consistent with the increase
in product sales in fiscal 2003. The Company’s
accounts receivable portfolio remains almost
entirely current.
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Reflecting the adverse economic conditions,
capital spending was somewhat restrained in
both fiscal 2003 and 2002, totaling approximately
$5.7 million and $4.5 million, respectively. Capital
expenditures in fiscal 2004 are expected to exceed
those incurred in fiscal 2003, but will depend
upon, among other factors, the level of economic
recovery, if any, in the high technology sector.
Capital expenditures are typically incurred to sup-
port the Company’s semiconductor test operation
and to acquire hardware, software and other tools
used in the design of the Company’s products.
There were no material commitments for capital
expenditures as of February 28, 2003.

During fiscal 2003, the Company purchased
approximately 482,000 shares of treasury stock in
open market transactions at a cost of $2.6 million.
In addition, cash flow for fiscal 2003 includes
$0.8 million of treasury stock purchases from
late February 2002, which settled in early March
2002. As of February 28, 2003, the Company
held 1,820,000 shares of treasury stock, at a
cost of $23.5 million. Approximately 1.2 million
shares remain available for repurchase under the
Company’s common stock repurchase program.

The Company’s contractual payment obliga-
tions and purchase commitments as of February
28, 2003 were as follows (in thousands):

Between

Payment Obligations Within 1 and
by Period Total 1year 3years Thereafter
Capitalleases $ 443 § 365 $ 78 § —
Operating leases 7,018 2,306 3,523 1,189
Other obligations 1,741 1,414 327 —
Purchase

commitments 13,460 13,460 - —
Total $22,662 $17,545 $3928 $1,189

The Company has considered in the past, and
will continue to consider, various possible trans-
actions to secure necessary foundry manufactur-
ing capacity, including equity investments in,
prepayments to, or deposits with foundries, in
exchange for guaranteed capacity or other
arrangements which address the Company’s
manufacturing requirements. The Company may
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also consider utilizing cash to acquire or invest
in complementary businesses or products or to
obtain the right to use complementary technolo-
gies. From time to time, in the ordinary course of
business, the Company may evaluate potential
acquisitions of or investment in such businesses,
products or technologies owned by third parties.

The Company expects that its cash, cash equiv-
alents, short-term investments, cash flows from
operations and its borrowing capacity will be
sufficient to finarice the Company’s operating
and capital requirements through the end of
fiscal 2004.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statemenis and the reported amount of
sales and revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.

The Company believes the following critical
accounting policies and estimates are important
to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condi-
tion and operating resuits, and require critical
management judgments and estimates about
matters that are inherently uncertain. Although
management believes that its judgments and esti-
mates are appropriate and reasonable, actual
future results may differ from these estimates, and
to the extent that such differences are material,
future reported operating results may be affected.

Revenue Recognition

Sales and revenues and associated gross profit
from shipments to the Company’s distributors,
other than to distributors in Japan, are deferred
until the distributors resell the products. Shipments
to distributors, other than to distributors in Japan,
are made under agreements allowing price pro-
tection and limited rights to return unsold mer-
chandise. In addition, the Company's shipments
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to its distributors may experience short-term fluc-
tuations as distributors manage their inventories
to current levels of end-user demand. Therefore,
the Company considers the policy of deferring
revenue on shipments to distributors to be a more
meaningful presentation of the Company’s operat-
ing results. It allows investors to better understand
end-user demand for the products that the
Company sells through distribution channels
and it better focuses the Company on end-user
demand. This policy is a common practice within
the semiconductor industry. The Company relies
upon its distributors to supply the Company with
distribution sales and inventory information regard-
ing its products, and, although the information is
diligently reviewed and verified for accuracy, any
errors or omissions made by those distributors
and not detected by the Company, if material,
could affect operating results.

The Company recognizes revenue from prod-
uct sales to original equipment manufacturers
(OEMSs) and to distributors in Japan at the time of
shipment, net of appropriate reserves for product
returns and allowances. For these revenues, the
Company must make assumptions and estimates
of future product returns and sales allowances,
and any differences between those estimates and
actual results, if material, could affect that period’s
operating results.

Inventorfes

The Company’s inventories are comprised of
complex, high technology parts that may be sub-
ject to rapid technological obsolescence and
which are sold in a highly competitive industry.
Inventories are valued at the lower of first-in, first-
out cost or market, and are actively reviewed for
product obsolescence and impaired values, based
upon assumptions of future demand and market
conditions. When it is determined that inventory is
stated at a higher value than that which can be
recovered, the Company writes this inventory
down to its estimated realizable value. While the
Company diligently endeavors to forecast cus-
tomer demand and stock commensurate levels of
inventory, unanticipated inventory write-downs in
the future may be required.




Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubt-
ful accounts for estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers to make required
payments. These estimated losses are based
upon historical bad debts, specific customer
creditworthiness and current economic trends. If
the financial condition of a customer deteriorates,
resulting in the customer’s inability to make
payments within approved credit terms, addi-
tional allowances may be required. The Company
performs credit evaluations of its customers’
financial condition on a regular basis, and has not
experienced any material bad debt losses during
the past three fiscal years.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, are
monitored and are reviewed for impairment when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of any such asset may
not be recoverable. The determination of recover-
ability is based on an estimate of undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use of
an asset and its eventual disposition. The esti-
mated cash flows are based upon, among other
things, certain assumptions about expected
future operating performance, growth rates and
other factors. Estimates of undiscounted cash
flows may differ from actual cash flows due to
factors such as technological changes, economic
conditions, and changes in the Company’s busi-
ness model or operating performance. If the sum
of the undiscounted cash flows (excluding inter-
est) is below the carrying value, an impairment
loss is recognized, measured as the amount by
which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of
the asset.

Marketable and non-marketable long-term equity
investments are also monitored for indications of
impairment in value. The Company records an
impairment charge against these investments
when the investment is judged to have experienced
a decline in value that is other than temporary.
Judgments regarding the value of non-marketable
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equity investments is subjective and is dependent
upon management’s assessment of the perform-
ance of the investee and its prospects for future
success. The Company holds minority equity
investments in several publicly and privately
owned companies, some of which operate in the
semiconductor industry and are subject to many
of the same business risks faced by SMSC.
During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, impairment
charges totaling $16.3 million were recorded
against two of these investments.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for income
Taxes, which requires recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates for
the effect of temporary differences between the
book and tax bases of recorded assets and liabil-
ities. SFAS No. 109 also requires that deferred tax
assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is
more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company regularly evatuates the realizabil-
ity of its deferred tax assets by assessing its fore-
casts of future taxable income and reviewing
available tax planning strategies that could be
implemented to realize the deferred tax assets.
At February 28, 2003, the Company had $20.3
million of deferred tax assets in excess of deferred
tax liabilities, all of which are considered fully real-
izable. Factors that may affect the Company’s
ability to achieve sufficient future taxable income
for purposes of realizing its deferred tax assets
include increased competition, a decline in sales
and revenues or gross margins, loss of market
share, delays in product availability, and techno-
logical obsolescence.

Legal Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is involved in
legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business. There can be no assurance that any
third-party assertions against the Company will be
resolved without costly litigation, in a manner that
is not adverse to its financial position, results of
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operations or cash flows. As of February 28,
2003, no estimate can be made of any possible
loss or possible range of loss associated with the
resolution any such contingencies. If additional
information becomes available which indicates
that a loss, or range of losses, is probable, the
Company would then record a charge for the min-
imum estimated liability, which could materially
impact operating results and financial condition.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 1486,
Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS
No. 146 requires that the liabilities for costs asso-
ciated with an exit or disposal activity be recog-
nized at their fair values when the liabilities are
incurred. Under previous guidance, liabilities for
certain exit costs were recognized at the date that
management committed to an exit plan, which is
generally before the actual liabilities are incurred.
SFAS No. 146 is effective only for exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The
adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a material
impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

In November 2002 the FASB issued Interpre-
tation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Dis-
closure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others
(FIN 45), effective prospectively for guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Under this Interpretation, a guarantor is required
to recognize, at the inception of certain guaran-
tees, a fair value liability for the obligations it has
undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The Company
did not have any outstanding guarantees at
February 28, 2003 that were required to be
recorded as obligations pursuant to the provi-
sions of FIN 45.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No.
148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 123 (SFAS No. 123), which
is effective for financial statements for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2002, with early adop-
tion permitted. SFAS No. 148 will enable compa-
nies that chocse to adopt the fair value based
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method to report the full effect of employee stock
options in their financial statements immediately
upon adoption, and to make available to investors
better and more frequent disclosure about the
cost of employee stock options. The Company
will continue to apply the disclosure-only provi-
sions of both SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148.

FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk
relates primarily to its investment portfolio. The
primary objective of the Company’s investment
portfolio management is to invest available cash
while preserving principal and meeting liquidity
needs. in accordance with the Company’s invest-
ment policy, investments are placed with high
credit-quality issuers and the amount of credit
exposure to any one issuer is limited.

As of February 28, 2003, the Company’s $22.9
million of short-term investments consisted pri-
marily of investments in corporate, government
and municipal obligations with maturities of
between three and twelve months. If market
interest rates were to increase immediately and
uniformly by 10% from levels at February 28,
2003, the Company estimates that the fair value
of these short-term investments would deciine by
an immaterial amount. The Company generally
expects to hold its short-term investments until
maturity and, therefore, would not expect operating
results or cash flows to be affected to any signifi-
cant degree by the effect of a sudden change in
market interest rates on short-term investments.

Equity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to an equity price
risk on its investment in Chartered Semicon-
ductor Manufacturing, Ltd. (Chartered). For every
10% adverse change in the market value of
Chartered common stock, the Company would
experience a decrease of approximately $0.2
million in its February 28, 2003 investment value.
The Company recorded a non-cash charge of
$7.8 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2003 for a
decline in value of this investment, considered to




be other than temporary, based upon a sustained
reduction in Chartered’s stock price performance.
Following this charge, the remaining investment in
Chartered stock represents the only material
investment in equity securities of other compa-
nies on the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet. The Company has sold call options cover-
ing this investment in the past and may do so in
the future to reduce a portion of this market risk.
No call options were sold covering this invest-
ment during fiscal 2003 or fiscal 2002.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has international sales and
expenditures and is, therefore, subject to certain
foreign currency rate exposure. The Company
conducts a significant amount of its business in
Asia. In order to reduce the risk from fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates, most of the Company’s
product sales and all of its arrangements with its
foundry, test and assembly vendors are denomi-
nated in U.S. dollars. Transactions in the Japanese

27

market made by the Company’s majority owned
subsidiary, SMSC Japan, are denominated in
Japanese yen. SMSC Japan purchases a sig-
nificant amount of its products for resale
from Standard Microsystems Corporation in
U.S. dollars, and from time to time enters into
forward exchange contracts to hedge against
currency fluctuations associated with these prod-
uct purchases. During fiscal 2003, SMSC Japan
entered into a contract with a Japanese financial
institution to purchase U.S. dollars to meet a
portion of its U.S. dollar denominated product
purchase requirements. Gains and losses on this
contract were not significant. As of February 28,
2003, the remaining commitments under this
contract, which expired in March 2003, were not
significant.

The Cdmpany has never received a cash divi-
dend (repatriation of cash) from SMSC Japan nor
does it expect to receive such a dividend in the
near future.
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Standard Microsystermns Corporation and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATICNS

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Product sales $154,244 $128,528 $162,008
Intellectual property revenues 1,273 30,770 1,420
155,517 159,298 163,428

Cost of goods sold 86,093 81,264 96,660
Gross profit 69,424 78,034 66,768
Operating expenses:

Research and development 31,166 31,178 32,580

Selling, general and administrative 36,268 32,744 35,369

Amortization of intangible assets 1,167 — —

Restructuring costs (247) 7,734 —
Income (loss) from operations 1,070 6,378 (1,181)
Other income (expense):

Interest income 2,069 3,450 5,534

Interest expense (166) (133) (212)

Impairments of investments {16,306} (669) —_

Other income (expense), net {43) 1,660 28,971
Income (loss) befare income taxes and minority interest {13,376) 10,686 33,112
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (6,422) 3,171 10,852
Minority interest in net income of subsidiary 17 40 96
Income (loss) from continuing operations (6,971) 7,475 22,164
Discontinued operations:

Gain {loss) from discontinued operations (net of

income taxes of ($281), ($918), and $2,799) (500) (1,564) 4,765

Net income (loss) $ (7.471) $ 5911 $ 26,929
Basic net income (loss) per share:

income (loss) from continuing operations $ (042 $ 047 $ 1.39

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations {0.03) (0.10) 0.30
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.45) $ 0.37 $ 1.69
Diluted net income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (042 $ 044 $ 1.29

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations (0.03) (0.09) 0.28
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.45) $ 035 $ 157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries.

CONMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

As of February 28, 2003 N 2002
Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,025 $ 98,065
Short-term investments 22,872 28,595
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $460 and $450, respectively 22,738 21,828
Inventories 17,644 17,585
Deferred income taxes 8,545 8,582
Other current assets 8,710 4317
Total current assets 170,534 178,972
Property, plant and equipment, net 22,257 24170
Goodwill 29,773 —
Intangible assets, net 6,008 —
investment in Chartered Semiconductor 1,840 9,992
Deferred income taxes 11,779 7,196
Other assets 5,758 | 15,733
$247,949 J $236,063
Liabilities and sharecholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 9,114 $ 8,477
Deferred income on shipments to distributors 5,943 6,225
Accrued expenses, income taxes and other liabilities 0,838 9,289
Total current liabilities 24,895 23,991
Other liabilities 7,379 6,973
Commitments and contingencies
Minority interest in subsidiary 11,663 11,646
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.10 par value authorized 1,000 shares, )
none issued —_— —
Common stock, $.10 par value authorized 30,000 shares,
issued 18,590 and 17,277 shares, respectively 1,859 1,728
Additional paid-in capital 145,553 119,505
Retained earnings 77,492 84,963
Treasury stock, 1,820 and 1,338 shares, respectively,
at cost (23,454) (13,861)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,562 1,118
Total shareholders’ equity 204,012 193,453
$247,848 || $236,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHCOLRERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Other Com-
_Common Stock  pgig-n  Retained _1easury Stock  prenansive
Shares Amount Capital  Earnings Shares Amount  Income Total
Balance at February 29, 2000 16,431  $1,643 $112207 $52,123  (671) & (4379) $40,108 $201,792
Comprehensive loss:
Net income — — — 26,929 — — — 26,929
Other comprehensive loss
Change in unrealized gain
on investments — — — - — —  (33,778)  (33,778)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment - — - — - _ (960) (960)
Total other comprehensive loss (34,738)
Total comprehensive loss (7,809)
Shares issued under Incentive
Savings and Retirement Plan 23 2 317 — - — — 39
Stock options exercised 333 33 3,003 — — - — 3,036
Tax effect of employee stock plans - — 567 —_ — - — 567
Stock-based compensation 95 10 — — — — — 10
Amortization of deferred stock-
based compensation — — 351 - — — - 351
Net exercise of stock warrants 200 20 20) — — - — -
Purchases of treasury stock — - — — (327 (3,951) — (3,951)
Balance at February 28, 2001 17,082 1,708 116,515 79052  (998) (8,330) 5370 194315
Comprehensive income:
Net income — - — 5,911 — - — 5911
Other comprehensive loss
Change in unrealized gain
on investments — - — — — — (2,683) (2,683)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment - — — - — - (1,569) {1,569)
Total other comprehensive loss (4,252)
Total comprehensive income 1,659
Stock options exercised 169 17 1,543 — - — - 1,560
Tax effect of employee stock plans —_ — 595 — — -_— — 585
Stock-based compensation 26 3 210 — — — - 213
Amortization of deferred stock-
based compensation — — 642 — — — — 642
Purchases of treasury stock — - - — (340 (5,531) — (5,531)
Balance at February 28, 2002 17,277 1,728 119,505 84,963 (1,338) (13,861) 1,118 193453
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss —_ - - (747) — - - (7,471)
Other comprehensive income
Change in unrealized gain
on investments - - - — - - (283) (283)
Foreign cuirency translation
adjustment - —_ - - - - 1,727 1,727
Total other comprehensive income 1,444
Total comprehensive loss (6,027)
Stock options exercised 489 49 5,139 — — - - 5,188
Tax effect of employee stock plans - - 1,828 — - - — 1,828
Stock-based compensation 75 7 302 — - - - 309
Amortization of deferred stock- )
based compensation - - 923 - -— - - 923
Issuance of common stock for
business acquisition 749 75 17,856 — - - - 17,931
Purchases of treasury stock —_ —_ - —  (482) {9,593) - (9,593)
Balance at February 2§, 2003 18,500 $1,859 $145,553 $204,012

$77,492 (1,820) S$(23,454) $ 2,562

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial stasements.
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Standard Microsystems Corporation and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASK FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the years ended February 28, 2003 H 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities: \
Cash received from customers and licensees $ 154,202 $ 152,884 $ 163,355
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {143,314) (122,655) (160,868)
Interest received 2,279 4,208 4,795
Interest paid (142) (133) (212)
Income taxes received (paid) 1,888 (5,349) {8,239)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 14,913 28,955 {1,169)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures {5,895) {4,488) (14,800)
Acquisition of Gain Technology Corporation,
net of cash acquired (15,668} (2,500) —
Sales of property, plant and equipment 148 2,004 891
Sales of long-term equity investments and options 78 1,064 38,608
Purchases of short-term investments {32,292) (32,595) (10,632)
Maturities of short-term investments 38,204 13,629 3,003
Other (38) (83) (140)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities {15,264) J L (22,969) 17,130
Cash flows from financing activities: ]
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 5,188 ‘ 1,560 3,111
Purchases of treasury stock {10,375} (4,750) (3,951)
Repayments of obligations under capital leases and
notes payable {2,617) (1,002) (924)
Net cash used for financing activities {7,804} & l (4,192) (1,764)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and |
cash equivalents 1,038 (691) (424)
Net cash provided by {used for) discontinued operations {923) \ ‘ (2,583) 12,367
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {8,040) (1,480) 26,140
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28,065 99,545 73,405
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 90,025 [ $ 98,085 $ 99,545
Reconciliation of income {loss} from conlinuing operations [
to net cash provided by {used for) operating activities:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (6971) || $ 7475 $ 22,164
Adjustments to reconcile income {loss) from continuing
operations to net cash provided by {used for} operating
activities, net of the effects of business acquisition:

Depreciation and amortization 10,752 11,614 11,792
Gains on sales of investments and property 47) (1,639) (28,935)
Asset impairments 16,303 5,602 —
Other adjustments, net {143) 80 {(221)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable {1,411) (5,666) (44)
Inventories {184) 14,172 (12,139)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities 753 (1,450) 3,982
Other changes, net (43 || (1,233 2,232
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 14,913 S ( $ 28,955 $ (1,169

During fiscal 2003, the Company acquired $1,876 of design tools through long-term financing provided by the supplier.

The accompanying notes are an inzegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
wng 3
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Standard Microsystems Corporation (the Com-
pany or SMSC), a Delaware corporation founded
in 1971 and based in Hauppauge, New York, is a
worldwide supplier of leading edge digital, mixed-
signal and analog integrated circuits for a broad
range of high-speed communication and com-
puting applications. The Company’s products
provide solutions in Advanced Input/Qutput (1/0)
technology, environmental monitoring and con-
trol, USB connectivity, networking and embedded
control systems. SMSC is the world’s leading
supplier of Advanced I/O integrated circuits for
' desktop and mobile personal computers.

2. SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last day
in February. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries after elimination of all significant
intercompany accounts and transactions.

Reclassifications

Certain items in the prior years’ consolidated
financial statemenis have been reclassified to
conform to the fiscal 2003 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. The
Company bases the estimates and assumptions
on historical experience and on various other fac-
tors that it believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product
sales to original equipment manufacturers (OEMs)
and end-users at the time of shipment, net of
appropriate reserves for product returns and
allowances. The Company’s terms of shipment
are customarily FOB shipping point.

Certain of the Company’s products are sold to
distributors under agreements providing for price
protection and rights to return unsold merchan-
dise. Accordingly, recognition of revenue and
associated gross profit on shipments to a majority
of the Company’s distributors is deferred until the
distributors resell the products. Shipments made
by the Company's Japanese subsidiary to distrib-
utors in Japan are made under agreements that
permit limited or no stock return privileges and no
price protection or other sales price rebates.
Revenue for shipments to distributors in Japan is
recognized upon shipment to the distributor.

Revenue recognition for a special intellectual
property payment received in fiscal 2002 is dis-
cussed within Note 7. The Company recognizes

"its other intellectual property revenues upon noti-
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fication of sales of the licensed technology by its
licensees. The terms of the Company’s licensing
agreements generally require licensees to give
notification to the Company and to pay royalties
no later than 60 days after the end of the quarter
during which the sales take place.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consisted principally
of cash in banks and highly liquid debt instru-
ments purchased with original maturities of three
months or less.

Short-Term Investments

Marketable debt and equity securities are
reported at fair value. As of February 28, 2003,
short-term investments consisted primarily of
investments in corporate obligations with maturi-
ties of between three and twelve months and are
classified as available-for-sale. Unrealized gains
and losses on short-term investments are included
as a separate component of Shareholders’ equity.
The cost of these short-term investments approx-
imates their market value as of February 28, 2003.




Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets for cash and cash equiva-
lents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses approximate fair value due to
their short maturities. The amounts presented for
other long-term liabilities also approximate their
fair values.

Inventories
inventories are valued at the lower of first-in,
first-out cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at
cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the buildings (20 to
25 years) and machinery and equipment (3 to 7
years). Upon sale or retirement of property, plant
and equipment, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and
any resulting gain or loss is reflected currently.

Cost-Basis Investments

Equity investments representing an ownership
interest of less than 20% in non-publicly traded
companies are carried at cost. Changes in the
values of these investments are not recognized
unless they are sold, or an impairment in value is
deemed to be other than temporary.

Long-Term Investments in Equity Securities

Investments in publicly traded equity securities
are classified as available-for-sale and are carried
at fair value on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Unrealized gains and temporary
losses on such securities, net of taxes, are
reported in Accumulated other comprehensive
income within Shareholders’ equity. Impairment
charges on these investments are recorded if
declines in value are deemed to be other than
temporary.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of
long-lived assets, including goodwill and intangible
assets, whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that future undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by an asset’s dis-
position or use may not be sufficient to support
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its carrying value. if such cash flows are not suffi-
cient to support the asset’s recorded value, an
impairment charge is recognized to reduce the
carrying value of the long-lived asset to its esti-
mated fair value.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwiil
and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 requires
goodwill and certain other intangible assets to be
tested for impairment at least annually, as well as
when an event indicating possible impairment
may have occurred. Intangible assets other than
goodwill that have finite lives are amortized over
their estimated useful lives. The Company
adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142 during
fiscal 2003. Further discussion of the Company’s
goodwill and intangible assets is provided within
Note 5.

Research and Development
Expenditures for research and development are
expensed in the period incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has in effect several stock-
based compensation plans under which incentive
stock options, non-qualified stock options and
restricted stock awards are granted to employees
and directors. All stock options are granted with
exercise prices equal to the fair value of the under-
lying shares on the date of grant. The Company
accounts for stock option grants in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Cpinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees
and accordingly recognizes no compensation
expense for the stock option grants. Additional
pro forma disclosures as required under SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure, are detailed below.

in March 2000, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation—An interpretation
of APB Opinion No. 25 (FIN 44). FIN 44 clarifies
certain aspects of APB Opinion No. 25, including
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the definition of an employee, the criteria for
determining whether a plan gualifies as a non-
compensatory plan, the accounting consequence
of various medifications to the terms of a previously
fixed stock option or award, and the accounting
for an exchange of stock compensation awards in
a business combination. The Company’s account-
ing for stock-based compensation complies with
the provisions of FIN 44.

Pro forma information regarding net income
(loss) and net income (loss) per share is required
by SFAS No. 123, and has been calculated as if
the Company has accounted for its stock option
plans under the fair value method of SFAS No.
123. The fair value of stock options issued has
been estimated at the dates of grant using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the fol-
lowing weighted average assumptions:

For the years ended February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Dividend yield -— — —
Expected volatility 64% 63% 64%
Risk-free interest rates 2.50% || 417% 4.62%
Expected lives (in years) 4.9 4 4

The weighted average Black-Scholes values of
options granted in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001
were $11.69, $7.57 and $8.57, respectively. The
values produced by this model are limited by the
inclusion of highly subjective assumptions, which
greatly affect the calculated values.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the esti-
mated fair market value of the Company’s options
is amortized as an expense over the options’ vest-
ing periods. Had compensation expense been
recorded under the provisions of SFAS No. 123,
the Company’s net income (loss) and net income
(loss) per share would have been the pro forma
amounts indicated below (in thousands, except
per share data):

For the years ended
February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss):
As reported $ (7,471) || $5,911  $26,929
Pro forma (14,263) (142) 22,529
Diluted net income
(loss) per share:
As reported $ (045) | $035 $ 1.57
Pro forma (0.86) (0.01) 1.31

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINA
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NGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this
pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future
operating results.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on tempo-
rary differences that arise in the recording of
transactions for financial and tax reporting
purposes and result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reduced by an
appropriate valuation allowance if, in manage-
ment’s judgment, part of the deferred tax asset
will not be realized. Tax credits are accounted for
as reductions of the current provision for income
taxes in the year in which the related expendi-
tures are incurred.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are
translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Resuits
of their operations are translated using the aver-
age exchange rates during the period. Resulting
translation adjustments are recorded within
Accumulated other comprehensive income within
Shareholders’ equity.

Foreign Exchange Contracts
The Company purchases most of its materials

-and transacts most of its international sales, with

the exception of certain sales to customers in
Japan, in U.S. dollars. The Company’s Japanese
subsidiary, SMSC Japan, serves the Japanese
market and transacts most of its sales to its cus-
tomers in Japanese yen. SMSC Japan purchases
a significant amount of its products for resale
from Standard Microsystems Corporation in U.S.
dollars and, from time to time, enters into forward
exchange contracts to hedge against currency
fluctuations associated with these product pur-
chases. During fiscal 2003, SMSC Japan entered
into a contract with a Japanese financial institution
to purchase U.S. dollars to meet a portion of its
U.S. dollar denominated product purchase require-
ments. Gains and losses on this contract were not
significant. As of February 28, 2003, the remain-
ing commitments under this contract, which
expired in March 2003, were not significant.




Comprehensive Income

The Company’s other comprehensive income
(loss) consists of foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on
investments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1486,
Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS
No. 146 requires that the liabilities for costs asso-
ciated with an exit or disposal activity be recog-
nized at their fair values when the liabilities are
incurred. Under previous guidance, liabilities for
certain exit costs were recognized at the date that
management committed to an exit plan, which is
generally before the actual liabilities are incurred.
SFAS No. 146 is effective only for exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The
adoption of this statement did not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In November 2002 the FASB issued Interpre-
tation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Dis-
closure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others
(FIN 45), effective prospectively for guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Under this Interpretation, a guarantor is required
to recognize, at the inception of certain guaran-
tees, a fair value liability for the obligations it has
undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The Company
did not have any outstanding guarantees at
February 28, 2003 required to be recorded as
obligations pursuant to the provisions of FIN 45.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No.
148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
—Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 123, which is effective for
financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002, with early adoption permit-
ted. SFAS No. 148 allows companies that choose
to adopt the fair value based method to report the
full effect of employee stock options in their finan-
cial statements immediately upon adoption, and
to make available to investors better and more
frequent disclosure about the cost of employee
stock options. The Company will continue to
apply the disciosure-only provisions of both SFAS
No. 123 and SFAS No. 148.
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3. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated
by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net income per share is com-
puted by dividing net income by the sum of the
weighted average common shares outstanding
during the period plus the dilutive effect of shares
issuable through stock options. Shares used in
calculating basic and diluted net income {loss) per
share are reconciled as follows (in thousands):

For the years ended February 28, 2003 2002 2001

Average shares out-
standing for basic
net income (loss)
per share

Dilutive effect of
stock options

Average shares out-
standing for diluted
net income (loss)
per share

16,538 || 16,068 15925

831 1,240

1]6,535{16,900 17,165

The Company reported a net loss from contin-
uing operations in fiscal 2003, and accordingly,
the effect of stock options covering 5,054,000
common shares was antidilutive for that period
and was excluded from average shares outstand-
ing used in the calculation of the fiscal 2003 net
loss per share.

Outstanding options covering 273,000 and
511,000 common shares were excluded from the
computation of diluted net income per share for
fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, because their
effect was antidilutive.

4. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

In June 2002, the Company acquired all of the
outstanding common stock of Gain Technology
Corporation (Gain), a developer and supplier of
high-speed, high-performance analog and mixed-
signal communications integrated circuits and
proprietary inteliectual property cores, based in
Tucson, Arizona. Gain now operates as SMSC
Analog Technology Center, Inc. (ATC). Through
this acquisition, the Company significantly
enhanced its analog and mixed-signal capabili-
ties, by adding 35 highly skilled engineers and
designers, acquiring several new products, and
expanding its intellectual property portfolio.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The Company acquired ATC for initial consider-
ation of $36.1 million, consisting of approximately
749,000 shares of SMSC common stock valued
at $17.9 million, $16.6 million of cash (net of cash
acquired), and $1.6 million of direct acquisition
costs, including legal, banking, accounting and
valuation fees. The value of the SMSC common
stock was determined using the stock’s market
value for a reasonable period before and after the
date the terms of the acquisition were announced.
The terms of the acquisition provided that up to
$17.5 million of additional consideration, payable
in SMSC common stock and cash, may be issued
to ATC’s former shareholders during fiscal 2004
upon satisfaction of certain future performance
goals. It has been determined that $15.0 million of
the additional consideration was not earned, and
$2.5 million remains contingent upon future per-
formance. Any additional consideration paid will
be recorded as goodwill.

In"accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
141, Business Combinations, the purchase price
was allocated to the estimated fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as set
forth in the following table. The fair values
assigned to intangible assets and in-process
research and development were determined with
the assistance of a third-party appraisal.

(in thousands)

Current assets $ 1,672
Property, plant and equipment 1,114
Deferred income taxes 1,212
Other assets 41
Goodwill 29,773
Existing technologies 6,179
Other intangible assets 908
Total assets acquired 40,899
Current liabilities 3,709
Long-term obligations 1,177
Total liabilities assumed 4,886
Net assets acquired 36,013
In-process research and development 87
Total initial consideration $36,100
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The amounts allocated to current technologies
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful life of six years. Other
intangible assets are also being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their respective estimated
useful lives, ranging from one to ten years. In
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the $29.8
million assigned to goodwill will not be amortized.
Further information regarding goodwill and other
intangible assets is provided within Note 5.

The amount assigned to in-process research
and development relates to those ongoing proj-
ects that have not yet proven to be commercially
feasible, and for which no alternative future use
currently exists for the related technology. This
charge is included within the Company’s consoli-
dated operating results for fiscal 2003.

The unaudited pro forma results of operations
set forth below give effect to the acquisition of ATC
as if it had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2002.
Pro forma data is subject to certain assumptions
and estimates, and is presented for informational
purposes only. This data does not purport to be
indicative of the results that would have actually
occurred had the acquisition occurred on the basis
described above, nor do they purport to be indica-
tive of future operating results.

For the years ended February 28, 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
Sales and revenues $1586,755 $165,544
Net income (loss) (8,448) 3,317
Basic net income (loss)

per share $ 0579 $ 020
Diluted net income (loss)

per share {0.51) 0.19




5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As discussed within Note 4, the Company’s
June 2002 acquisition of Gain Technology Corpo-
ration included the acquisition of $7.1 million of
finite-lived intangible assets and $29.8 million
of goodwill. In accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 142, this goodwill is not amortized, but
is tested for impairment in value annually, as well
‘as when an event or circumstance occurs indicat-
ing a possible impairment in value.

As of February 28, 2003, the Company’s finite-
lived intangible assets consisted of the following

(in thousands):
Accumulated
Cost  Amortization  Net

Existing
technologies $6,179 $ 772 $5,407
Customer contracts 498 154 344
Non-compete
agreements 410 153 257
$7,087 $1,079 $6,008

All finite-lived intangible assets are being amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Existing technologies have been
assigned an estimated useful life of six years.
Customer contracts have been assigned useful
lives of between one and ten years (with a
weighted average life of approximately seven
years), and non-compete agreements have been
assigned useful lives of two years. The weighted
average useful life of all intangible assets is
approximately six years.

Estimated future intangible asset amortization
expense for the next five fiscal years is as follows

(in thousands):
Amortization of
Intangible Assets

2004 $1,310
2005 1,114
2006 1,062
2007 1,082
2008 1,082

6. BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING

In November 2001, the Company’s Board of
Directors approved management’s plan to exit the
PC chipset business, redirect the Company’s
resources, and increase its focus on leveraging
its core technologies toward higher growth,
higher margin businesses. This restructuring was
announced on December 3, 2001. The decision
to exit this business was based upon an assess-
ment of the PC chipset marketplace, and man-
agement’s conclusions that the opportunities for
profitability in this marketplace had declined, and
the costs of entry had increased, to a point where
further investments in PC chipset technology
were not justified.

As a result of this restructuring, the Company
recorded charges of $9.0 million in fiscal 2002, of
which $7.7 million was classified within operating
expenses and $1.3 million was classified within
cost of goods sold on the Consolidated Statement
of Operations. In fiscal 2003, the Company reduced
these charges by $0.2 million, after reassessing its
remaining obligations under this restructuring plan.

A summary of the restructuring charge is as follows (in thousands):

Excess and Non-cancelable
Impairments Obsolete Workforce Lease Other
of Assets Inventory Reduction  Obligations  Charges Total

Charged to expense $ 5,340 $1,275 $ 309 $1,870 $215  $9,009
Non-cash charges (5,190) (1,275) — — (15) (6,480)
Cash payments — — (807) 99) (19) (425)
Business restructuring reserve

at February 28, 2002 150 — 2 1,771 181 2,104
Cash payments — — — (387} (21) (418)
Non-cash charges — — — — {20) (20)
Adjustment to expense {150) —_ {2) — (85) (247)
Business restructuring reserve

at February 28, 2003 § - 3 — $ — $1,374 $ 45 $ 1,419
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Impairment of Assets

All assets identified as specifically utilized in
the Company’s PC chipset development activities
were evaluated for possible future use, and those
assets for which there was no alternative future
use were written off. Most of these assets con-
sisted of software and intellectual property used in
the design and development of integrated circuits,
many of which were acquired by non-exclusive,
non-transferable licenses. These assets were
classified as held for disposal, which was effected
through abandonment of their use. One asset,
which was originally acquired specifically to sup-
port the Company’s PC chipset activities, was
determined to have alternative future use within
the Company’s ongoing operations. An impairment
charge of $1.9 million was recorded on this asset,
based upon an assessment of its fair value through
comparison to market values of assets providing
functionality similar to the asset’s future use.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory

The Company’s inventory of PC chipset prod-
ucts, built primarily in anticipation of future design
wins, was determined to have minimal net realiz-
able value and was written down accordingly.

Workforce Reduction

As a result of this restructuring, and in line with
the sustained economic difficulties of the semi-
conductor marketplace, the Company eliminated
55 positions, or 11% of its work force, during
the third quarter of fiscal 2002. Most of the posi-
tions eliminated were within the Company’s engi-
neering and deveiopment staff. This workforce
reduction resulted in a $0.3 million charge for
severance benefits.

Non-cancelable Lease Obligations

The workforce reduction created idle floor space
at two of the Company’s leased facilities, both of
which are subject to long-term, non-cancelable
lease obligations. The restructuring charge
included $1.9 million to cover the cost of this idle
space, which was based upon the ratio of idle
floor space to total floor space at each location.

The Company completed its restructuring pro-
gram during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.
Substantially all of the cash payments related to
the workforce reduction were made in that period.
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Payments related to non-cancelable lease obliga-
tions will be paid over their respective terms,
through August 2008.

The restructuring had minimal impact on prod-
uct sales, as the Company had yet to achieve
significant product sales of PC chipset products.

7. TECHNOLOGY AND PATENT LICENSE

AGREEMENTS WITH INTEL CORPORATION
In 1987, the Company and Intel Corporation (Intel)
entered into an agreement providing for, among
other things, a broad, worldwide, non-exclusive
patent cross-license between the two companies,
covering manufacturing processes and products,
thereby providing each company access to the
other’s current and future patent portfolios.

In September 1999, the two companies
announced a technology exchange agreement
(the Agreement) that would allow SMSC to accel-
erate its then ongoing development of Intel com-
patible chipset products. Chipset products are
integrated circuits that communicate with the
microprocessor (CPU) and assist in controlling
the flow of information within a personal computer
or similar application. The Agreement provided,
among other things, for Intel to transfer certain
intellectual property related to Intel chipset archi-
tectures to SMSC, and continues to provide
SMSC the opportunity to supply Intel chipset

components along with its own chipset solutions.

The Agreement also limited SMSC's rights
regarding Northbridges and Intel Architecture
Microprocessors under the 1987 agreement.

The Agreement included provisions for its ter-
mination under certain circumstances. Under one
such provision, beginning in the third year of the
Agreement and annually thereafter, SMSC could
elect to terminate the Agreement should SMSC
not achieve certain minimum chipset revenue
amounts set forth in the Agreement, unless Intel
paid SMSC an amount equal to the shortfall
between the minimum revenue amount and the
actual revenue for that period. Upon the Agreement
terminating under this provision, the limitations
imposed by the Agreement on the Northbridge
rights under the 1987 agreement would terminate
immediately, and the limitations imposed by the
Agreement on the microprocessor rights under
the 1987 agreement would terminate twelve




months later. Should Intel elect to make the rev-
enue amount shortfall payment, the provisions of
the Agreement would remain in force for the sub-
sequent twelve-month period, for which another
minimum revenue amount would be applicable,
and at the end of which a similar termination
event would arise. Minimum chipset revenue
amounts were $30 million, $45 million, and $60 mil-
lion for the twelve months ending September 21,
2001, 2002, and 20083, respectively, increasing by
10% for each succeeding twelve-month period
following 2003, until expiration of the Agreement
in July 2007.

In September 2001, pursuant to the provisions
described in the preceding paragraph, SMSC
notified Intel of a chipset revenue shortfall of
approximately $29.6 million for the twelve months
ended September 21, 2001. In November 2001,
the Company received a $29.6 million payment
from Intel, which is reported as intellectual prop-
erty revenue on the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Operations for fiscal 2002.

In September 2002, SMSC notified Intel of a
chipset revenue shortfall of approximately $44.9
million for the 2002 twelve-month period. Intel did
not make a payment to SMSC of that shortfall
within the time frame specified within the Agree-
ment, and SMSC gave Intel notice of termination
of the Agreement in accordance with the terms
thereof. The Company and Intel have commenced
discussions regarding their various corporate and
intellectual property relationships, including under
the Agreement. However, there can be no assur-
ance as to the outcome of those discussions.

8. DISCONTINUED QOPERATIONS

In March 1999, the Company's Board of
Directors approved a plan for the Company to
divest its Foundry Business Unit (FBU). This
divestiture was completed on June 1, 1999, with
the Company selling the assets of the FBU to pri-
vately held Inertia Optical Technology Applications,
inc. {IOTA) of Newark, New Jersey, in exchange
for 38% of IOTA’s outstanding common stock.
The combined businesses began operating as
Standard MEMS, Inc. (SMI).

The Company reported the operating results,
net assets and cash flows of the FBU as a dis-
continued operation, and recorded a pre-tax

39

charge of $15.2 million in fiscal 1999, covering
write-downs of certain assets, pre-closing operat-
ing losses, and other costs associated with the
transaction. In fiscal 2000, the Company recorded
a $4.2 million adjustment to reduce the loss on
the disposition of this operation, reflecting a pre-
viously reserved income tax benefit, as well as an
adjustment of estimated final disposition costs.
During fiscal 2001, the Company sold the majority
of its ownership interest in SMI and realized an
after-tax gain of $4.8 million, which appears as a
Gain on sale of discontinued operation on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year ended February 28, 2001. This sale of SMI
stock reduced the Company’s ownership interest
in SMI below 5%.

The Company has been involved in several legal
actions relating to past divestitures of divisions and
business units. These divestitures were accounted
for as discontinued operations and, accordingly,
costs associated with these actions are reported
as a Loss from discontinued operations on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. These
costs totaled $0.8 million, before applicable
income tax benefits of $0.3 million, for the year
ended February 28, 2003, and $2.5 million, before
applicable income tax benefits of $0.9 million, for
the year ended February 28, 2002. These costs
were nominal for the year ended February 28, 2001.

8. INVESTMENTS AND IMPAIRMENT
CHARGES

Investment in Chartered Semiconductor

During fiscal 1986, the Company entered into an
agresment with Singapore-based Chartered Semi-
conductor Manufacturing Ltd. (Chartered), whereby
the Company acquired a minority equity interest
of less than 2% in Chartered for $19.9 million.
Under the terms of this agreement, the Company is
allocated wafer production capacity in Chartered’s
wafer fabrication facilities.

In October 1999, shares of Chartered began
trading publicly on the Singapore stock exchange,
and also began trading on the Nasdaq Stock
Market as American Depository Shares, or ADSs.

Other income (expense), net reported in fiscal
2001 reflects gains realized on sales of portions
of the Company’s investment in Chartered, as
well as proceeds from sales of call options covering
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a portion of its Chartered stock holdings. The
gains totaled $24.2 million in fiscal 2001, while
proceeds from the sales of call options, none of
which were exercised, were $2.2 million during
the same period. No sales of this investment or
related call options were executed in either fiscal
2003 or fiscal 2002.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the
Company recorded a $7.8 million charge for a
decline in value, considered to be other than tem-
porary, of its equity investment in Chartered,
based upon a sustained reduction in Chartered’s
stock price performance, reducing the cost basis
of the remaining investment to $2.9 million.

As of February 28, 2003, the Company held
approximately 444,000 of its original 828,000
Chartered ADSs, which are reported on the Con-
solidated Balance Sheet at $1.8 million, based
upon their closing price on the Nasdaq Stock
Market on that date. This further decline in value,
as compared to the investment’s cost basis as
adjusted in the third quarter of fiscal 2003, is
reported as a component of Accumulated other
comprehensive income on the Company’s Con-
solidated Balance Sheet. If Chartered’s stock
continues to trade below the Company’s adjusted
cost basis, further write-downs of this investment
in the future are possible.

The investment in Chartered stock represents
the only material investment in equity securities of
other companies on the Company’s February 28,
2003 Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Investment in SMC Networks, Inc.

As more fully described within Note 15, the
Company’s investment in SMC Networks, Inc. is a
residual minority equity interest in a non-public
company sold by SMSC in 1997. Based upon a
valuation analysis performed by the Company
with the assistance of a third party during the
third quarter of fiscal 2003, this investment, which
carried an original cost of $8.5 mitlion, was fully
written off in the third quarter of fiscal 2003.

Other Long-Term Equity Investments

The Company held an equity investment of less
than 1% in a publicly traded company, all of
which was sold over the past three fiscal years,
resulting in a nominal pre-tax gain in fiscal 2003,
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and pre-tax gains of $1.1 million and $2.0 million
in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2002,
the Company recorded charges totaling $0.7 mil-
lion to write down two cost-basis investments in
privately held companies. Management con-
cluded that these investments had experienced
impairments in value considered to be other than
temporary. Both investments now carry no net
book value.

All gains and losses related to these equity
investments are included within Other income
(expense), net, on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations.

10. OTHER BALANCE SHEET DATA
(In thousands)

As of February 28, 2003 2002
Inventories:
Raw materials $ 761 || % 465
Work-in-process 7,686 5,820
Finished goods 9,187 11,300
$ 17,644 | $ 17,585
Property, plant and equipment:
Land $ 3434 | $ 3434
Buildings and improvements 29,927 29,257
Machinery and equipment 81,562 76,121
114,923 108,812
Less: accumulated depreciation 92,665 84,642
$ 22,257 || $ 24,170
Other assets:
Common stock of
SMC Networks, Inc. $ — || $ 8452
Other 5,758 7,281
$ 5758 | $ 15733
Accrued expenses, income
taxes and other liabilities:
Salaries and fringe benefits $ 2322 || $ 2358
Current maturities of
long-term debt 1,756 890
Business restructuring
obligations (current portion) 459 726
Other 5,301 5,315
$ 9838 | $§ 9,289
Other liahilities:
Retirement benefits $ 5811 | § 539
Business restructuring
obligations 960 1,378
Cther 608 200
$ 7379 | $ 6973




11, SALES OF FACILITIES

During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Com-
pany sold two underutilized facilities. Combined
proceeds from these sales were $2.1 million, before
related expenses, and the sales resulted in a net
pre-tax gain of approximately $0.6 million, which is
included within Other income (expense), net.

12. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In July 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an increase in the number of shares
authorized for repurchase under the Company’s
common stock repurchase program by one mil-
lion shares, bringing the total number of shares
authorized for repurchase under the program to
three million. This program allows the Company
to repurchase shares of its common stock on the
open market or in private transactions. As of
February 28, 2003, the Company had repurchased
approximately 1.8 million shares of common stock
at a cost of $23.5 million under this program,
including 482,000 shares repurchased in fiscal
2003 at a cost of $9.6 million, 340,000 shares
repurchased in fiscal 2002 for $5.5 million, and
327,000 shares repurchased in fiscal 2001 for
$4.0 million. The Company currently holds repur-
chased shares as treasury stock, reported at cost.

Shareholder Rights Plan

The Company maintains a Shareholder Rights
Plan as part of its commitment to ensure fair
value to all shareholders in the event of an unso-
licited takeover offer. The Company’s current
Shareholder Rights Plan was adopted by the
Board of Directors in January 1998, replacing the
Company’s previous plan that had expired on
January 12, 1998, and was subsequently amended
in December 2000 and in April 2002. Under this
plan, the Company’s shareholders of record on
January 13, 1998 received a dividend distribution
of one preferred stock purchase right for each
share of common stock then held, and any new
stock certificates issued after the record date con-
tain the same rights. In the event of certain efforts
to acquire control of the Company, these rights
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allow sharehaolders to purchase common stock of
the Company at a discounted price. The rights will
expire in January 2008, unless previously redeemed
by the Company at $.01 per right. Citigroup, Inc.’s
(Citigroup) ownership of the Company’s common
stock is excluded from requiring distribution of
rights under the plan, so long as Citigroup remains
a passive investor and its ownership interest does
not exceed 28%. As of December 31, 2002,
Citigroup was the beneficial owner of approxi-
mately 20% of the Company’s common stock.

Investment by Intel Corporation

In March 1997, the Company and Intel Corpo-
ration (intel) entered into a Common Stock and
Warrant Purchase Agreement (the Agreement)
whereby Intel purchased 1,543,000 newly issued
shares of the Company’s common stock for $9.50
per share, or $14.7 million. Intel also received a
three-year warrant to purchase an additional
1,543,000 shares. In March 2000, as provided for
in the warrant, Intel executed a “net exercise,”
whereby Intel was issued 200,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, which was equal in
fair value to the excess of the warrant’s market
value over its exercise value, as defined in the
Agreement. The Company immediately repur-
chased these 200,000 shares from Intel for $1.9
million under its common stock repurchase pro-
gram. This warrant is now fully exercised.

So long as Intel continues to hold its initial
investment, the Agreement provides Intel a right
of first refusal upon certain corporate transac-
tions, including proposed sales of all or substan-
tially all of the assets of the Company, certain
sales of common stock of the Company and
certain other transactions which would result in or
relating to a change in control of the Company.
The Agreement also provides Intel certain other
rights, including demand registration rights with
respect to shares acquired under the Agreement,
a right for intel to designate a representative to
serve on the Company's Board of Directors, and
antidilution rights. The Agreement aiso imposes
certain restrictions upon Intel, including limita-
fions, in certain circumstances, on intel’s ability
to acquire additional shares of the Company’s
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common stock (referred to as a standstill arrange-
ment}, and restrictions on the transfer of shares
acquired pursuant to the Agreement.

13. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes included in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Oper-
ations consists of the following (in thousands):

For the years ended
February 28, 2003 H 2002 2001
Current
Federal $(3,119) | $5308 $ 7,684
Foreign 327 241 602
State 147 176 149
(2,645) 5,725 8,435
Deferred (4,058) (3,472) 5216
(6,703) 2,253 13,651
Less: tax provision
for (benefit from)
discontinued
operations (281) (918} 2,799
$(6,422) || $3,171 $10,852

The tax provisions for and benefits from discon-
tinued operations represent the taxes resulting
from gains and losses related to the Company’s
previous sale of former divisions, which were
accounted for as discontinued operations. These
gains and losses are further described in Note 8.

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes
related to continuing operations differs from the
amount computed by applying the U.S. federal
statutory tax rate as a result of the following:

For the years ended
February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Provision for (benefit from)

income taxes computed at

U.S. federal statutary rate  (35.0)% || 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal

benefit (0.8) 1.0 0.2
Differences between foreign

and U.S. income tax rates i5 0.7) 0.7
Tax-exempt income (1.7 (4.5 2.2)
Export sales benefit {6.5) — -
Tax credits (4.6) 1.9 (1.0
Other 0.9) N 0.8 0.1

(48.0)% || 29.7% 32.8%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax
effects of temporary differences between the car-
rying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes. The components of the
Company’s deferred tax benefits are as follows (in
thousands):

As of February 28, 2003 .l 2002
Deferred tax assets: F
Reserves and accruals
not currently deductibte
for income tax purposes $ 5,307 $ 5,186
Inventory valuation 2,416 3,372
Intangible asset amortization 379 2,124
Restructuring costs 2,321 2,553
Purchased in-process
technology 1,058 1,179
Property, plant and equip-
ment depreciation 347 503
impairment charges on
investments 5,707 —_
Net operating losses 1,449 —_
Other, net 1,340 861
Net deferred tax assets $20,324 || $15,778

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority
interest includes foreign income of $0.2 million,
$0.7 million and $0.9 million for fiscal 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

At February 28, 2003, the Company had fed-
eral net operating losses totaling $11.7 million. Of
this amount, $4.1 million is attributable to the
June 2002 acquisition of Gain Technology Corpo-
ration and is subject to certain limitations under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. The
remaining $7.6 million results from the Company's
fiscal 2003 operating results, the tax effect of
which is reflected on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at February 28, 2003 as a receivable within
Other current assets. The Company also has $2.5
million of New York State tax credit carryforwards
at the end of fiscal 2003, of which $0.1 million will
expire in fiscal 2004. The remaining $2.4 million of
credit carryforwards expire at various dates in fis-
cal 2005 through fiscal 2016.




14. MINORITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. of Osaka,
Japan (Sumitomo) owns 20% of the issued and
outstanding common stock and all of the non-
cumulative, non-voting 6% preferred stock of the
Company's subsidiary, SMSC Japan. This sub-
sidiary, formerly known as Toyo Microsystems
Corporation, was renamed Standard Microsystems
K.K. in March 2002, and is now doing business as
SMSC Japan.

The Company and Sumitomo have agreed to
declare a preferred dividend if SMSC Japan
should realize net income of at least five times the
total amount of preferred dividends which would
be payable on all preferred stock then outstand-
ing. The annual preferred dividend would be
equal to 6% of the subscription price of 2.16 bil-
lion yen, or approximately $1.1 million, at an
exchange rate of 118 yen per dollar. No such div-
idends have as yet been declared. in the event that
a third party acquires a majority of the outstanding
common stock of the Company, Sumitomo has
the option to require the Company to purchase
Sumitomo’s interest in SMSC Japan.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Compensation

Certain executives and key employees are
employed under separate agreements terminating
on various dates through fiscal 2006. These agree-
ments provide, among other things, for annual
base salaries totaling $1.5 million, $0.8 million
and $0.2 million in fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively.

Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries lease certain
facilities and equipment under operating leases.
The facility leases generally provide for the lessee
to pay taxes, maintenance, and certain other
operating costs of the leased property.

The Company also leases certain equipment
under long-term capital leases, some of which
include options to purchase the equipment for a
nominal cost at the termination of the lease.
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At February 28, 2003, future minimum lease
payments for non-cancelable lease obligations
are as follows (in thousands):

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2004 $365 $2,306
2005 55 1,801
2006 23 888
2007 — 834
2008 — 692
Thereafter — 497
Total minimum lease
payments 443 $7,018
Less: Amount
representing interest 27
Present value of minimum
lease payments 416
Less: Current obligation 343
Long-term obligation $ 73

Included within property and equipment are
the following assets held under capital leases
(in thousands):

2002
$ 4,709

As of February 28, 2003 ﬂ

$ 4,810

Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated
depreciation

(4,132)
$ 778

(3,265)
$ 1,444

)

Total rent expense for all operating leases was
$1.7 million, $1.8 million and $1.9 million in fiscal
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company leases one of its buildings and
related improvements to an outside party under a
non-cancelable operating lease. At February 28,
2003, the cost and accumulated depreciation of
the ieased facility was $7.2 million and $4.9 miltion,
respectively.

Future minimum rental income under this
operating lease for the next five fiscal years and
thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

Rental
Income
2004 $ 398
2005 421
2006 445
2007 470
2008 498
2009 and thereafter 1,225
$3,457
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Litigation

The Company is subject to various lawsuits
and claims in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcome of these matters cannot be
determined, management believes that their ulti-
mate resolution will not have a material effect on
the Company’s operations or financial position.

In October 1997, the Company sold an 80.1%
interest in SMC Networks, Inc., a then-newly
formed subsidiary comprised of its former local
area networking division, to an affiliate of Accton
Technology Corporation (Accton). In consideration
for the sale, the Company received $38.2 million
in cash, plus an additional $2.0 million which was
placed in an interest-bearing escrow account as
security for the Company’s indemnity obligations
under the agreement, and which was scheduled
for release to the Company in January 1999.
The Company’s 19.9% minority interest in SMC
Networks, Inc. carried an original cost of $8.5 mil-
lion. Further discussion regarding this investment
appears within Note 9.

in December 1998, Accton notified the Com-
pany and the escrow agent of Accton’s intention
to seek indemnification and damages from the
Company in excess of $10.0 million by reason of
alleged misrepresentations and inadequate dis-
closures relating to the transaction and other
alleged breaches of covenants and representa-
tions in the related agreements. Based upon those
allegations, the escrow account was not released
to the Company as scheduled in January 1999.
In January 1999, SMSC filed an action in the
Supreme Court of New York (the Action) against
Accton, SMC Networks, Inc. and other parties,
seeking the release of the escrow account to the
Company on the grounds that Accton’s allega-
tions are without merit, and seeking payment of
approximately $1.6 million owed to the Company
by SMC Networks, Inc. In November 1999, the
Court issued an order staying the Action and
directed the parties to arbitration under the

arbitration provisions of the original transaction
agreements. The parties are proceeding with
arbitration and, in July 2000, the Company
asserted various claims against Accton and its
affiliates, including claims for fraud, improper
transfer of profits, mismanagement, breach of
fiduciary duties and payment default.

The Company remains confident that it negoti-
ated and fully performed its obligations under the
agreements with Accton in good faith and consid-
ers the claims against it to be without merit. The
Company is vigorously defending itself against
the allegations made by Accton, and although it is
not possible at this time to assess the likelihood
of any liability being established, expects that the
outcome will not be material to the Company.
Furthermore, the Company is vigorously pursuing
recovery of damages and other relief from Accton
pursuant to the Company’s claims, but the likeli-
hood of any such recovery also cannot currently
be established.

16. BENEFIT AND INCENTIVE PLANS

Incentive Savings and Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution
Incentive Savings and Retirement Plan {the Plan)
which, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code, permits employees to defer taxa-
tion on their pre-tax contributions to the Plan.

The Plan permits employees to contribute up
to 15% of their earnings, through payroll deduc-
tions, based on earnings reduction agreements.
The Company makes matching contributions to
the Plan in the form of SMSC common stock. The
Company’s matching contribution to the plan is
equal to two-thirds of the employee’s contribu-
tion, up to 6% of the employee’s earnings. The
Company’s matching contributions to the Plan
totaled $1.0 million, $0.9 million and $0.7 million
in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Since July 2000, common stock for the
Company’s matching contributions to the Plan




has been purchased in the open market. Pre-
viously, newly issued common stock was con-
tributed to the Plan from authorized reserves.
Since its inception, 1,334,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock have been contributed
to the Plan.

As of February 28, 2003, 336 of the 422 employ-
ees who had satisfied the Plan’s eligibility
requirements to participate were making con-
tributions to the Plan.

Employee Stock Option Plans
Under the Company’s stock option plans, the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

is authorized to grant options to purchase shares
of common stock. The purpose of these plans is
to promote the interests of the Company and its
shareholders by providing officers and key
employees with additional incentives and the
opportunity, through stock ownership, to increase
their proprietary interest in the Company and their
personal interest in its continued success. Options
are granted at prices not less than the fair market
value on the date of grant. As of February 28, 2003,
459,000 shares of common stock were available
for future grants of stock options or restricted
stock awards.

Stock option plan activity is summarized below (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Fiscal Average Fiscal  Average Fiscal Average

2003  Exercise 2002 Exercise 2001 Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding, beginning of year 4,083 $12.52 3,500 $12.17 2,510 $ 9.10
Granted 1,732 21.71 1,138 13.95 1,581 16.11
Exercised (407} 10.79 (175) 9.49 (287) 8.98
Canceled or expired (810) 21.30 (400) 14.86 (304) 10.38
Options outstanding, end of year 4,778 $14.87 | 4,063 $12.52 3,500 $12.17
Options exercisable 1,594  $12.27 }L 1,110  $11.40 565 $ 9.54

The following table summarizes information relating to currently outstanding and exercisable options as

of February 28, 2003 (shares in thousands):

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Range of Lives Options Exercise Options Exercise
Exercise Prices (in years) Outstanding Prices Exercisable Prices
$ 6.250-$ 9.500 5.78 1,070 $ 7.96 608 $ 8.32
$ 9.564-$14.093 7.44 1,345 13.17 612 13.19
$14.187-$17.343 8.33 991 15.42 209 15.39
$17.375-$22.350 8.89 1,179 21.25 137 18.57
$22.380-$24.950 8.74 193 23.33 28 23.83

4,778 1,594
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NCTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Director Stock Option Plan

Under the Company’s Director Stock Option
Plan, non-qualified options to purchase common
stock may be granted to directors at prices not
less than the market price of the shares at the

date of grant. At February 28, 2003, the expiration
dates of the outstanding options under this plan
range from July 22, 2006 to January 15, 2013,
and the exercise prices range from $8.50 to
$20.25 (average $15.03) per share.

The following is a summary of activity under the Director Stock Option Plan over the past three fiscal

years (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Fiscal Average Fiscal  Average Fiscal Average

2003 Exercise 2002 Exercise 2001 Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding, beginning of year 261 $12.78 213 $12.27 218 $11.03
Granted 102 17.29 48 15.02 50 18.25
Exercised {92) 11.11 — — (55) 12.71
Options outstanding, end of year 271 $15.03 261 $12.78 213 $12.27
Options exercisable 269 $14.88 247 $12.61 188 $11.88

Shares available for future grants,
end of year 92 194 —

Director Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation
plan for its non-employee directors, which permits
eligible directors to defer 50% or 100% of their
basic annual compensation, which is otherwise
paid in cash. During fiscal 2001, the plan was
modified to require deferral of at least 50% of
basic annual compensation by all plan partici-
pants. Under this plan, an unfunded account
is established for each participating director,
which is credited with equivalent units of the
Company’s common stock on the first day of
each quarter. These equivalent units track the

economic performance of the underlying stock,
but carry no voting rights. The deferred compen-
sation earned under this plan is payable when the
participant leaves the Company’s Board of
Directors, for any reason, and, for current direc-
tors, is paid in either common stock or an equiva-
lent amount of cash, at the election of the
director. During fiscal 2003, the plan was further
modified to eliminate the option of paying the
deferred compensation in cash for future partici-
pants in the plan. Compensation expense under
this plan was $0.1 million in each of fiscal 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following is a summary of the activity under this plan (units in thousands):

For the years ended February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Common stock equivalent units, beginning of year 31 25 23
Common stock equivalent units earned during the year 4 6 6
Common stock distributed during the year — — 4)
Common stock equivaient units, end of year 35 31 25
Common stock equivalent units available, end of year 65 69 75
Range of common stock prices used to calculate
common stock equivalent units $16.43-$22.60 || $9.73-$17.10  $14.38-$20.25
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Restricted Stock Awards

The Company provides common stock awards
to certain officers and key employees. Awards
granted under the plan are typically earned in
25%, 25% and 50% increments on the first,
second and third anniversaries of the award,
respectively. The shares granted are distributed
provided the employee has remained employed
by the Company through such anniversary dates;
otherwise the unearned shares are forfeited. The
market value of these shares at the date of award
is recorded as compensation expense ratably
over the three-year periods from the respective
award dates, as adjusted for forfeitures of awards
that did not vest. Deferred compensation expense
of $2.1 million and $1.4 million associated with
unearned shares under this plan as of February
28, 2003 and 2002, respectively, is reported
within Additional paid-in capital on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Compensation
expense for these awards was $0.9 million, $0.7
million and $0.4 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Through February 28, 2003, 237,000 shares, net
of cancellations, have been awarded under this
plan. The Company, at its discretion, can grant
restricted stock awards from the shares available
under its 2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock
Plan. As of February 28, 2003, the Company had
459,000 shares available for the issuance of stock
options and restricted stock awards.

Retirement Plans

In October 2000, the Board of Directors termi-
nated all additional benefits for active non-
employee directors under its Directors Retirement
Plan, other than those benefits already earned,
effective in January 2001. Affected directors were
offered the opportunity to retain their vested
retirement benefit, or to exchange that retirement
benefit for a restricted stock grant. In January
2001, a combined 28,000 shares of restricted
common stock valued at $0.6 million were

granted to certain directors in exchange for their
respective benefits under the Directors Retirement
Plan. Those directors who chose to retain their
retirement benefits, as well as all retired non-
employee directors, will continue to receive bene-
fits under the terms of the original plan, as
modified. The annual retirement benefit is equal
to the annual retainer in effect at the date of
retirement or December 31, 2000, whichever is
earlier, for a period equal to the lesser of the
director’s years of service through December 31,
2000 or ten years. Following the completion of all
payments to current participants, the Directors
Retirement Plan will terminate. Retirement expense
recorded under this plan was $0.1 million in each
of fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively, and was a
nominal amount in fiscal 2001.

The Company maintains an unfunded Sup-
plemental Executive Retirement Plan to provide
senior management with retirement, disability and
death benefits. The Plan’s retirement benefits are
based upon the participant’s average compensa-
tion during the three-year period prior to retire-
ment. The Company is the beneficiary of life
insurance policies that have been purchased as a
method of partially financing these benefits.
Based upon the latest available actuarial informa-
tion, the following table sets forth the components
of the Plan’s net periodic pension expense, the
Plan’s funded status and the assumptions used in
determining the present value of benefit obliga-
tions (dollars in thousands):

For the years ended
February 28, 2003 ﬂ 2002 2001
Service cost—benefits

earned during the year $100 | $71 $ 80
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligations 358 346 339
Net ameortization and

deferral 245 241 244
Net periodic pension

expense $703 || %658 $663
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCGIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

As of February 28, 2003 2002 2001
Actuarial present value of:
Vested benefit obligation $ 4,586 $ 4,555 $ 3,975
Nonvested benefit obligation 563 287 130
Accumulated benefit obligation 5,148 4,842 4,105
Effect of projected future salary increases 1,479 1,228 809
Projected benefit obligation 6,628 6,070 4,814
Unrecognized gain or (loss) (754) (379) 565
Unrecognized net transition asset (1,470) (1,715) (1,961)
Additional minimum liability - 745 867 587
Accrued pension cost $ 5,149 Lﬂi 4,843 $ 4,105
Assumptions used in determining actuarial present value
of benefit obligations:
Discount rate 6.00% 6.00% 7.25%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Executive Incentives

The Company’s Board of Directors has provided
that certain executives receive incentive compen-
sation based upon certain sales and revenues,
earnings and other performance measures. incen-
tive compensation of $0.9 million, $0.8 million
and $0.9 million was earned in fiscal 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

17. INDUSTRY SEGMENT, GEOGRAPHIC,
CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER
INFORMATION

Industry Segment

The Company operates in a single industry
segment in which it designs, develops and mar-
kets semiconductor integrated circuits for the
personal computer, peripheral and embedded
systems marketplaces.

Geographic Information

The Company’s domestic operations include
its worldwide sales and revenues, exclusive of
some of its sales and revenues from customers in
Japan, and most of its operating expenses. The
majority of the Company’s sales and revenues
and operating profits from customers in Japan are
recorded by SMSC Japan. The Company con-
ducts various sales and marketing operations out-
side of the United States through SMSC Japan,
and through subsidiaries in Europe and Asia.

The Company’s long-lived assets include net
property and equipment, and other long-lived
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assets. The vast majority of the Company’s net
property and equipment is located in the United
States. Included within other long-lived assets
is an equity investment in Singapore-based
Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd.
valued at $1.8 million as of February 28, 2003.

Export Sales

The information below summarizes sales and
revenues to unaffiliated customers by geographic
region (in thousands):

For the years ended
February 28, 2003 2002 2001
North America $ 14,712 $ 42,913 $ 37,750
Asia and

Pacific Rim 131,903 106,123 101,039
Europe 8,823 10,157 24,240
Rest of World 79 105 399

$155,517 || $159,298 $163,428

Significant Customers

Revenues from significant customers, as a per-
centage of total sales and revenues, are summa-
rized as follows:

For the years ended

February 28, 2003 || 2002 2001
Customer A 19.6% 15.2% *
Customer B 12.1% * *
Customer C * 29.0% 11.2%
Customer D 14.3% * *

*Less than 10% of sales and revenues.




Significant Suppliers

The Company does not operate a wafer fabri-
cation facility. Two independent semiconductor
wafer foundries in Asia currently supply substan-
tially all of the Company’s devices in current pro-
duction. In addition, substantially all of the
Company’s products are assembled by one of
four independent subcontractors in Asia.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company sells its products to personal
computer and electronic equipment manufactur-
ers and their subcontractors, and to electronic
component distributors, and maintains individu-
ally significant accounts receivable balances from
several of its larger customers. One customer
accounts for $7.1 million and $7.5 million of the

Company’s accounts receivable as of February
28, 2003 and February 28, 2002, respectively. The
Company performs credit evaluations of its cus-
tomers’ financial condition on a regular basis and,
although the Company generally requires no col-
lateral, prepayments or letters of credit may be
required from its customers in certain circum-
stances. Reserves for estimated credit losses are
maintained and actual losses were not significant
for all years presented.

The Company invests its cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments in a variety of finan-
cial instruments and, by policy, seeks to limit the
credit exposure on these investments through
diversification and by restricting the investments
to highly rated securities.

18. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Quarzer ended

May 31 Aug. 31 Nov. 30 Feb. 28

Fiscal 2003
Product sales
Intellectual property revenues

Gross profit

Operating income

income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Net income (loss)

Basic net income (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Diluted net income (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Average shares outstanding
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Market price per share

High
Low

$33,828 837,948 $40,293 $42,175

179 352 305 437
34,007 38,300 40,598 42,612
15,072 17,911 17,945 19,286

27 231 14 798

433 568 (9,032) 1,060

81) (258) (125) (36}
352 310 (,157) 1,024

$ 003 $ 0.3 $ (054 - $ 008
©.01) {0.01) .01} —

$ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ (0.55) $ 0.08

$ 002 $ 003 $ (054) $ 0.06
— {0.61) (0.01) —_

$ 0.02 $ 002 $ (0.55) $ 0.05

16,080 16,631 16,718 16,748
17,811 18,214 16,718 17,208

$ 27.65 $ 24.90 $ 22.85 $ 22.43
18.30 16.32 11.80 12.89
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Quarter ended May 31 Aug. 31 Nov. 30 Feb. 28
Fiscal 2002
Product sales $30,510 $30,120 $34,644 $33,254
Intellectual property revenues 326 269 29,870 205
30,836 30,389 64,614 33,459
Gross profit 11,776 12,183 40,299 13,776
Operating income {loss) (4,512) (8,039) 13,591 338
Income (loss) from continuing operations (1,624) (869) 9,195 773
Loss from discontinued operations (245) (807) (116) (896)
Net income (loss) (1,869) (1,176) 9,079 (123)
Basic net income (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.10) $ (0.05) $ 0.57 $ 005
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.01) (0.06)

$ 012y $ (0.07) $ 056 $ (0.01)

Diluted net income (loss) per share _
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.10) $ (0.05) $ 056 $ 0.04
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.01) (0.05)

$ 012) $ (007) $ 055 $ (0.01)

Average shares outstanding

Basic net income (loss) per share 16,102 16,107 16,071 16,018
Diluted net income (loss) per share 16,102 16,107 16,525 17,070
Market price per share
High $ 17.00 $ 17.90 $ 13.82 $ 19.75
Low 12.06 11.79 8.50 12.94

The Company’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market under the Nasdaq symbol:
SMSC. Trading is reported in the Nasdaq National Market. There were approximately 838 holders of record
of the Company’s common stock at April 2, 2003.

The present policy of the Company is to retain earnings to provide funds for the operation and expansion
of its business. The Company has never paid a cash dividend, and does not expect to pay cash dividends
in the foreseeable future.
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REPORTYTS OF 'NDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Standard Microsystems Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of February 28, 2003 and the
related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of
Standard Microsystems Corporation and its sub-
sidiaries at February 28, 2003, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
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disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. The financial statements of
Standard Microsystems Corporation and its sub-
sidiaries as of February 28, 2002, and for each of
the two years in the period ended February 28,
2002, were audited by other independent account-
ants who have ceased operations. Those inde-
pendent accountants expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements in their
report dated April 4, 2002,

&QAMWM LL P

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, NY
April 2, 2003
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REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT ACCOQUNTARNTS (continued)

THE FOLLOWING REPORT IS A COPY OF A REPORT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
AND HAS NOT BEEN REISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP.

To Standard Microsystems Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheets of Standard Microsystems
Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and sub-
sidiaries as of February 28, 2002 and 2001, and
the related consolidated statements of opera-
tions, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended
February 28, 2002. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit {o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes
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assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Standard Microsystems
Corporation and subsidiaries as of February 28,
2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended February 28, 2002, in conform-
ity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP

New York, NY
April 4, 2002
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PRO FORMA AND CAAP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
IRCOME (LOSE) FROM CONTIRUING OPERATIONS (UNAUDBITED)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Due to the significance of several special items recorded in fiscai 2003 and in fiscal 2002, SMSC is presenting the following
unaudited pro forma information to facilitate a comparison of the operating results for both periods. The pro forma information
was prepared by excluding certain special items, details of which appear in the notes following the table, from the Company’s fiscal
2003 and fiscal 2002 operating resutts prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

For the years ended February 28, 2003 P 2002
Pro Forma GAAP Pro Forma GAAP
Product sales $154,244  $154,244 $128,528 $128,528
Intellectual property revenues 1,273 1,273 1,175 30,770
155,517 155,517 129,703 159,298

Cost of goods sold ' 86,093 88,093 79,989 81,264
Gross profit 69,424 69,424 49,714 78,034
Operating expenses:

Research and development 31,166 31,166 31,178 31,178

Selling, general and administrative 36,268 36,268 31,846 32,744

Amortization of intangible assets 1,167 1,167 — —

Restructuring costs —_ (247) — 7,734
Income {loss) from operations 823 1,070 (13,310) 6,378
Other income (expense):

Interest income 2,069 2,069 3,450 3,450

Interest expense (168) (166} (133) (133)

Impairments of investments — {16,308) — (669)

Other income (expense), net (43) (43) 1,660 1,660
Income (loss) before income taxes and

minority interest 2,683 (13,376) (8,333) 10,686
Provision for {benefit from) income taxes 188 {6,422) (3,676) 3,171
Minority interest in net income of subsidiary 17 17 40 40
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 2478 $ (6,971) $ (4697) $ 7475
Diluted net income (loss) per share from i

continuing operations $ 014 $ (042 $ (029 $ 044
Diluted weighted average common shares _

outstanding 17,928 16,538 16,069 16,960

Items excluded for purposes of the pro forma presentations:

Fiscal 2003—$16,306 of investment impairment charges and $5,870 of related income tax benefits;
. $829 of prior years’ income tax benefits; and a $247 adjustment to restructuring charges with an $89

related income tax provision.

Fiscal 2002—3$29,595 of special intellectual property revenue with a related $10,654 income tax provision;
$9,009 of restructuring costs, including $1,275 within cost of goods sold and $7,734 within operating
expenses, with a related $3,243 income tax benefit; $898 of special selling, general and administrative
charges, with a related $324 income tax benefit; and $669 of investment impairment charges with $240

of related income tax benefits.
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Corporate Headquarters

80 Arkay Drive

PO. Box 18047

Hauppauge, New York 11788-8847
Phone: 631-435-6000

Fax: 631-273-5550

Web Site: www.smsc.com

Common Stock

NASDAQ® Stock Symbol: SMSC
During the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2003, prices of the
Company’s common stock were:
High $27.65

Low $11.80

Closing $14.62

2003 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders

The 2003 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders will be held at
10:00 a.m., Wednesday, July 9,
2003 at the offices of Cleary,
Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton,
One Liberty Plaza, 39th Floor,
New York, New York 100086.

Form 10-K

A copy of Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion can be obtained upon request
to Investor Relations, Standard
Microsystems Corporation, at

the corporate headquarters
address above.

Shareholder Inquiries, Change of
Address or Duplicate Mailings
Questions concerning stock
transfer, lost certificates or other
administrative matters should
be directed to American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company by
calling 1-800-937-5449. If you
change your address or wish to
consolidate duplicate mailings,
please contact American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company at the
address below or by e-mail at
www.info@amstock.com.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
American Stock Transfer

& Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane, Lobby Floor
New York, New York 10038
Attention; Shareholder Relations
Web Site: www.amstock.com

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
401 Broadhollow Road
Melville, New York 11747

Legal Counsel

Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton
One Liberty Plaza

New York, New York 10006
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Patent/Technology Licensees

ALi Corporation

Advanced Micro Devices, Inc.

AT&T Corp.

Fujitsu, Ltd.

General Motors Corporation

Hitachi, Ltd.

Hualon Microelectronics Corporation

Hynix Semiconductor, Inc.

Intel Corporation

International Business
Machines Corporation (IBM)

Kawasaki Steel Corporation

Lucent Technologies Inc.

Matsushita Electric Industrial
Co., Ltd.

Micron Technology, Inc.

Mitsubishi Electric Corporation

National Semiconductor
Corporation

NEC Corporation

Nippon Steel Semiconductor
Corporation

Oki Electric Industry Company, Ltd.

Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.

Sanyo Electric Co., Ltd.

SGS-Thompson
Microelectronics BV

Sharp Corporation

Texas Instruments Incorporated

Toshiba Corporation

United Microelectronics
Corporation

Winbond Electronics Corporation
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